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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

Lori A, Weaver
Commissioner 603-271-9544 1-5300-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Katja S. Fox
Director

May 16, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Retroactive, Sole Source contract with Riverbend Community Mental Health, inc.
(VC#177192), Concord, NH, in the amount of $765,152 to establish a 12-bed community
residence that provides supported housing for individuals experiencing serious mental iliness
(SMI) or serious and persistent mental illness (SPMI) with high treatment needs for psychiatric
stability and with ambulatory issues, with the option to renew for up to one (1) additional year,
effective retroactive to March 13, 2024, upon Governor and Council approval through September
30, 2024. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, with the

authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state
fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-94-940010-2465 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ARPA DHHS FISCAL RECOVERY FUND

State Class / Total
Fiscal Year | Account Class Title Job Number Amount
2024 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Svc | OOFRF602PH9545A $225,000
2025 102-500731 | Contracts for Prog Sve | O0FRF602PH9545A $540,152
‘ Total $765,152
EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive to align with the Governor and Executive Council's approval
of the Accept and Expend Item #6 on March 13, 2024. The Contractor has already started
renovations on the property because the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) State Fiscal
Recovery Funds must be encumbered by September 30, 2024. These one-time funds are
intended to assist the Contractor with making the renovations needed to establish a 12-bed
community residence program as well as purchase one (1) commercial, handicap accessible van
to ensure transportation is available to the wider community. This request is Sole Source
because the Contractor is able to provide the necessary services due to their ability to consolidate
their administrative buildings in order to renovate and reopen the property located at 278 Pieasant
Street, Concord as a 12-bed community residence program providing supported housing
services.
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His Excellency, Govemor Chrislophor T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council 3
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The purpose of this request is to support renovations on a building that will allow for the
creation of a 12-bed community residence program that will provide supported housing, as well
as to purchase a commercial, handicap accessible van for the provisions of transportation
services that foster access to the broader community. The Contractor has vacated building space
once used for administrative purposes and is in the process of renovating it to accommodate the
12-bed community residence. The space will be a single floor living residence to provide access
to community housing and treatment options for a more impaired, vulnerable population.
Additionally, the space will feature clinical meeting space, a family meeting room, a large dinmg
room, and space large enough for group activities. - The Contractor will also purchase a van in
order to provide transportation services as needed and appropriate.

Approximately 12 _community residence beds will become availéble by September Sb.
2024, :

The Department will monitor services by momtonng the monthly status reports and final
report provided by the Contractor.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Prowsrons of the attached
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up one (1) additional year,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval.

Should the Govermnor and Council not authorize this request, the current lack of community
residences providing supported housing options will persist, which' may lead to longer stays-at
hospital emergency departments and will impede tlmely discharges from New Hampshire
Hospital, leaving the Department at risk of not being in compllance with the Community Mental
Heaith Settlement Agreement.

Area served: Services located in Concord and available Statewide.
Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #21.027, FAIN # SLFRP0145.
In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not

be requested to support this program. l

" 7o) &
Lori A. Weaver ¥t
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join commuriities and families
in providing opportunities for cilizens to achieve health and independence.
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Subject: Communily Residence (SS-2024-DBH-37-COMMU-01)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
‘The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS '
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services Concord, NH 03301-3857
1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
: 278 Picasant Street
Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc. Concord, NH 03301
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Unit and Class 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number TBD . $765,152
(603} 226-7505 September 30, 2024
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Robert W. Moorc, Director (603) 271-9631
1.11 Contractor Signature . 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
DocuSigned by:
! US"— MAM ’ D"“ﬁz 2/2024 Lisa Madden l;resident & CEO
\ ACL
1.13 State Agency Signature .14 Name and Title-of State Agency Signatory
DocuSigned by: . 3 .
W S. Fox Datg: /23,2024 Katja S. Fox D RECtoR
1.15 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)
By: Director, On:
1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)
DocuSigned by:
By:| “febye Guino On: 5 24/2024
1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicabie)
G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:

Ds
Page 1 of 4 l UJUL

Contractor Initials

Date5/22/2024



DocuSign Envelope 1D: B62E38F7-170B-4E5B-A§98-59ACC38041BC

t

2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
{**State™), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 (**Contractor”)
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference
{(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.} Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Govemor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and a!l obligations of the parties hereundér, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Council
approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 113
{“Effective Date™). '

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contracter prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agréement does not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Services performed.

3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legistative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies

_the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in part,
the State shall have the right {0 withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds
in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT,
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 Notwithstanding any- provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The
payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the performance
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hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law,

5.4 The State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to

monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right 1o specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State,

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT -
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws, -
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon. the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor’s order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules; regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws. -

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not.
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment

" because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,

physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take affirmative
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors
comply with these nondiscrimination requirements.

6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.

6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and
all rules, regulations and orders periaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized |
to do so under all applicable laws.

7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the State’s point of contact pertaining to this

Agreement.
oS
(1w

Contractor Initials

Date5/22/2024
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES,

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder (“Event
of Default™):

8.1.1 faiture to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or

8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
after giving the Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written nofice specifying the Event of
" Default and suspending all paymients to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that
the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specufymg the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written_notice to the Contractor
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement,
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than. the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the State’s discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,
not later than fifteen (I5) calendar days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™} describing in detail
all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to and
including the date of termination, In addition, at the State’s
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
transition ptan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “Property” shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, ail whether finished or
unfinished.
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11, CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE."

10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned
to the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement
for any reason.

10.3 Disclosure of data, mformauon and other records shall be
governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law,
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

In the
performance’ of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employees,
agents or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive
any benefits, workers’ compensation or other emoluments
provided by the State to its employees.

0 {
12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS. -
12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifteen
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the written consent of the State.
12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. “Change of Control” means (a) merger,
conselidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor.
12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Centractor
without prior written notice and consent of the State.
12.4 The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it

“is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. 'The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, its officers, and employees
from " and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
Jjudgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indifectly arising from death,
personal injury, property damage, intellectual property
infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State’s
sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination

of this Agreement.
0s
(e

" Contractor Initials

Date5/22/2024
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14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance: ! )
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
31,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and .

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of
‘New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of [nsurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the State-of New Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor, a certificate(s) of
- insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. At the
request of the Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor
shall provide certificate(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION,

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (“'Workers’
Compensation”}.

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
_ Workers’ Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer identified-in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers’ Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers’ Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement,

16, WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post
Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2
and 1.4, herein.
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18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the
circumstances pursuant o State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.

19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the .
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between
the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement including any attachments thereto,

" the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A} shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for

the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

23. SPECIAL. PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of .counterparts, cach of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter

hereof. '
(1w
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‘New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Residence

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions -

1. Revisions.to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1, Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire, this Agreement, and all obligations of the
parties hereunder, shall become retroactively effective on March 13,
2024 ("Effective Date”).

Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by deleting
subparagraph 3.3 in its entirety and replacing it as follows:

3.3. Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date specified
in block 1.7. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to one (1)
additional year from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and
approval of the Governor and Executive Council. -

Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.5 as follows: '

12.5. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
. compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement.in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance. '

:os
55-2024-DBH-37-COMMU-01 A-1.2 _ Contractor Initlals -

Riverbend Co'rn.munily Mental Health, Inc. Page 1 of 1 . ' Date

7.14.23

5/22/2024
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Residence ‘

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1,

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

Moy

1.6.

1.7.

The Contractor must renovate the property located at 278 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301, to operate a community residence program for individuals .

.experiencing serious mental iliness or serious and persistent mental illness with

high treatment needs for psychiatric stability and with ambulatory issues in

- accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 1002, Certification

Standards for Behavioral Health Community Residences, and New Hampshire -
Administrative Rule He-P 800, Residential Care and Health Facility Rules, Part
814, Community Residences at the Residential Care and Supported
Residential Care Level, referenced as He-P 814, and ensure the residence
accommodates:

1.1.1. A minimum of 12 beds;

1.1.2.  Single-floor living;

1.1.3. Clinical meeting space;

1.1.4. A family meeting room;

1.1.5. A farge dining room; and

1.1.6. Space Ia‘rge enough for group activities.

The Contractor must submit a timeline-of the renovations to the Department
within 15 calendar days of contract approval.

The Contractor must purchase one (1) commercial, handicap accessible van
for the provision of transportation services. for individuals who reside at the
property. The Contractor must ensure;

1.3.1. Transportation is available for individual's ability to access the
broader community; and

1.3.2. Trénsportation services are provided at no cost to individuals in need
of serwces

The Contractor must operate as a community reS|dence program as described
in Section '1.1., and ensure the van purchased as described in Section 1.2.
continues to be used for its original purpose for a minimum of six {6) years from
the effective date of this Agreement.

The parties shall not exchange any confidential information regarding clients of

* the community residence program through this Agreement, which is intended

to fund renovations of the property and purchase of the van only.

Contractor must participate in meetmgs with the Department on a quarterly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department.

The Contractor must facilitate on-site visits to demonstrate pro re(i%&of

$5-2024-DBH-37-COMMU-01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials

/ 572272024

Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc. Page 1of 4 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Commumty Residence

EXHIBITB

renovations and a tour of the final renovated space prior to occupancy by
- participants as requested by the Department.

1.8. Reporting

1.8.1. The Contractor must submit monthly progress répoﬂs to the
' Department which includes, but is not limited to:

1.8.1.1. Status of renovations —including if they are on target, ahead
of schedule or delayed,;

1.8.1.2. Status of permits and licensing, as applicable; and

1.8.1.3. Timeline for opening and admlttlng residents, mcludmg any
barriers or delays.

1.8.2. The Contractor must submit a final report to ensure compliance which
includes, butis not limited to:

1.8.2.1. A detailed account of funding spent on approved uses
during the term of the Agreement.

1.8.3. The-Contractor must submit annual attestation reports for six (6) years
from the effective date of this Agreement to ensure program
compliance which includes, but is not limited to:

1.8.3.1. The renovated property continues to be used for its original
purpose as described in the Scope of Work of this
Agreement. .

1.8.3.2. The burchased van continues to be used for its original
purpose as described in the Scope of Work of this
Agreement.

1.8.4. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics
to the Department in a format specified by the Department.

.1.9.  The Contractor agrees that Sections 1.3. and 1.6. survive termination and the
Completion Date of the Agreement.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1.  The Contractor must comply with all Exhibit D. Federal Requirements, which
are attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms _
3.1. impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to @feve

§8-2024-DBH-37-COMMU-01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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_ compliance therewith.
3.2. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.2.1. Al documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement, “The
preparation of this {report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services.” )

3.2.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.23. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.2.3.1. Brochures.

1 842682 Resource directories.
3.2.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.
3.2.34. Posters.

3.2.35. Reports. -

3.2.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.
1

3.3. - Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.3.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
must comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, -
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which must impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit must be required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities must comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and must-ke in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-I ﬁ:&nd

§8-2024-DBH-37-COMMU-01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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4, Records

4.1.

4.2.

regulations.

The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

41.1.

413

Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor, .

2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting

procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,

" labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
" the Department

All records must be maintained for a minimum of five years. This Section
survives termination and the Completion Date of this Agreement.

During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the

- Department, the United States Department of Heaith and Human Services, and
‘any of their designated representatives must have access-to all reports and

records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts.

If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disallow
any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department
retains the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as

_ are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Ds

(i
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Payment Terms

-~ 1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% This Agreement is funded under a grant to the State of New
Hampshire (State) and subsequently through the Governor's Office for
Emergency Relief and Recovery (GOFERR) and the Department as'

_approved by the Governor and Executive Council from the federal
government through the Department of Treasury (Treasury) through the

. American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA), with 100% of the source
of funds being the State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds
(SLFRF) identified under the Assistance Listing Number (ALN) "
#21,027. The Federal Award lIdentification -Number (FAIN) for
this award is SLFRP0145. This grant award is a subaward of
SLFRF funds and any and all compliance requirements, as updated
by Treasury, for use of SLFRF funds are applicable to the
Subrecipient, without further notice. Treasury  requirements  are -
published and updated at https:/fhome.treasury.gov/policy-
issues/coronavirus/assistance-for-state-local-andtribal-governments/
state-and-local-fiscal-recovery-funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department hasuidentiﬁed:
2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.331.
22. The AQreement as.NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expehditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget.

3.1. Expenditures by the Contractor must be created as a liability to the
organization no later than September 30, 2024.

3.2. The Department may recoup payments made under this Agreement, in
whole or in part, in the event the Contractor fails to comply with the
provisions of this Agreement, in whole or in part, and does not remedy
any such failure to the Depdrtment’s satisfaction. This Section survives
termination and the Completion Date of this Agreement.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth. (15th) working day of the month following
the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
each invoice: i

. 4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

4.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the

Department. E"s
$5-2024-DBH-37-COMMU-01 c-21 Contractor Initials :
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4.3. Identifies and requests payhent for allowable costs incurred in the
: previous month.

4.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
that includes, but is not limited to:

4.4.1. Vehicle |dentification Number (VIN) for the van;
4.42. Acguisitibn'date and purchase 'price of the vehicle.
4.4.3. Copy of the Title for the vehicle.

4.4.4. Make and Model of the véhicle.

445. Proof of expendifures including, .but not limited to, gasoline,
automobile insurance, and routine maintenance and repairs.

4.46. Location and condltlon of the vehicle.

4.5. |s completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

4.6. |s assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
‘ and is emailed to dbhinvoicesmhs@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

Financia! Manager

Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

5. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

6. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date - specified in Form P-37, General Provusmns Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified. -

8. Audits

8.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov
if any of the following conditions exist:

: . :os
55-2024-DBH-37-COMMU-01 ' c-2.1 Contractor Initials
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8.1.1.  Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 br more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR
Part 200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

8.1.2.  Condition B - Thé Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to
the requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lli-b.

8.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and
required by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC)
regulations to submit an annual financial audit.

8.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
' Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative  Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

8.2.1. The Contractor shali submit a copy of any Single Audit
- findings and any associated corrective action plans. The
Contractor shall submit quarterly progress reports on the

status of implementation of the corrective action plan.

8.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor’s fiscal year.

84. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardiess
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annuat
financial audits performed by an independent CPA upon request.

8.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which excéption has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

9. Property Standards
9.1. - Insurance coverage.

8.1.1.  The Contractor must, at a minimum, provide the equivalent
insurance coverage for real property and equipment acquired
or improved in whole or in part with State funds under this
Agreement as the Contractor provides to real property and
equipment the Contractor owns outside of this Agreement,

:ns
$8-2024-DBH-37-COMMU-01 C-21 Caontractor Initials
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9.2 Real property.

"9.2.1.  Subject to the obllgatlons and conditions set forth- in this
section, title to real property acquired or improved in whole
or in part with State funds under this Agreement (herein “real
property”) will vest upon acquisition in the Contractor.

9.2.2. Except as

otherwise provided by State statutes or by the

Department, the Contractor must use the real property for the
purpose originally authorized by the State as long as needed
for that purpose, during which time the Contractor must;

9.221.

9222.

Not dispose of or encumber its title or other
interests without prior State approval.

Submit annual reports to the State as required jn
Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Subsection 1.7.
Reporting, to confirm the real property continues
to be used for the originally authorized purpose.
When real property is no longer needed for the

- originally authorized purpose, the Contractor

§5-2024-DBH-37-COMMU-01
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must obtain disposition instructions from the
State. The instructions must provide for one ofthe
following alternatives:

9.2.2.2.1. Retain title after compensating the
State. The amount paid to the State
will be computed by applying the
State's percentage of participation in
the cost of the original purchase (and
costs of any improvements) to the fair
market value of the property;
However, in those situations where the
Contractor is disposing of real property
acquired or improved with State funds
and acquiring replacement real
property prior to expiration of this
Agreement and any amendment
thereof, the net proceeds from the
disposition may be used as an offset
to the cost of the replacement
property;

8.2.2.2.2. Sell the property and compensate the
State. The amount due to the State will
be calculated by applying the State's-
- percentage of participation. in the cost

of the original purchase (anc1 ﬂ[i t of
©oc-24 Contractor Initials
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any improvements) to the proceeds of
the sale after deduction of any actual
and reasonable selling and fixing-up
expenses. If the State appropriation
funding this Agreement or any
amendment thereof has not been
closed out, the net proceeds from sale
may be offset against the original cost
of the property. When the Contractor is
directed to sell property, sales
procedures must be followed that
provide for competition to the extent
practicable and result in the highest
possible return; or

9.2.223. Transfer title to a third party
designated/approved by the State.
The Contractor is entitled to be paid an
amount calculated by applying the
State’s percentage of participation in
the purchase of the real property (and .
cost of any improvements) .to the
current fair market value of the

property.
9.3. Equipment.

9.3.1..  Equipment means tangible personal property (including
information technology systems) purchased in whole or in
part with State funds and that has a useful life of more than
one (1} year and a per-unit acquisition cost which equals or
‘exceeds $5,000.

9.3.2. Subject to the obligations and conditions set forth in this .
section, title to equipment acquired with State funds will vest
upon acquisition in the Contractor subject to the following
conditions. The Contractor must:

9.3.2.1. Use the equipment for the authorized purposes of
the project during the period of performance, or
until the property is no longer needed for the
purposes of the project.

9.3.2.2. Notencumber the property without approval ofthe
State. '

:Ds
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8.3.23.

9.3.3. Use.
9.3.31.

Usé and dispose of the property in accordance
with Paragraph $8.3., Paragraph 9.3.1. and
Paragraph 9.3.5.

Equipment must be used by the Contractor in the
program or project for which it was acquired as
long as needed, whether or not the project or
program’ continues to be supported by State
funds, and the Contractor must not encumber the
property without prior approval of the State. When
no longer needed for the original program or
project, the equipment may be used in other

~activities funded by the State.

9.3.3.2.

9.3.3.3.

8334,

§85-2024-DBH-37-COMMU-01
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During the time that equipment is used on the
project or program for which it was acquired, the
Contractor must also make equipment available
for use on other projects or programs currently or
previously supported by the State, provided that -
such use will not interfere with the work on the
projects or program for which it was originally
acquired. First preference for other use must be
given to other programs or projects supported by
the State that financed the equipment. Use for

-non-State-funded programs or projects is also

permissible with approval from the State.

When acquiring replacement equipment, the
Contractor may use the equipment to be replaced
as a trade-in or sell the property and use the
proceeds to offset the cost of the replacement
property.

Management requirements. Procedures for
managing equipment (including replacement
equipment), whether acquired in whole or in part
with State funding, until disposition takes place
will,- as a minimum, meet the following
requirements;

9.3.3.4.1. Property records must be maintained
that include a description of the
property, a serial number or other
identification number, the source of
funding for the property, who holds

title, the acquisition date, ancI (if%;.()f

c-21 Contractor Initials '
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the property, percentage of State
participation in the project costs for the
Agreement under which the property
was acquired, the location, use and
condition of the property, and any
ultimate disposition data including the
date of disposal and sale price of the

property.

9.3.3.4.2. A physical inventory of the property

must be taken and the results
reconciled with the property records at
least once every two (2) years.

9.3.3.4.3. A control system must be developed to
ensure adequate safeguards to
prevent loss, -damage, or theft of the
property. Any loss, damage, or theft
must be investigated.

9.3.3.4.4. Adequate maintenance procedures
must be developed to keep the
property in good condition.

9.3.3.4.5. If the Contractor -is authorized or
required to sell the property, proper
sales procedures must be established
to ensure the highest possible return. -

9.3.4. Disposition. When original or replacement equipment
acquired with State funds is no longer needed for the original
project or program or for other activities currently or

previously

supported by the State, except as otherwise

provided by State statutes or in this Agreement, the
Contractor must request disposition instructions from the
State. Disposition of the equipment will be made as follows:

9.3.4.1.

9.3.4.2.

- Items of equipment with a current per unit fair

market value of $5,000 or less may be retained,
sold or otherwise disposed of with no further
obligation to the State.

items of equipment with a current per-unit fair-
market value in excess of $5,000 may be retained
by the Contractor or sold. The State is entitled to

-an amount calculated by multiplying the current

$5-2024-DBH-37-COMMU-01
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market value or proceeds from sale by the State's

percentage of participation in the cost-ebsthe
(kM
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original purchase. If the equipment is sold, the
State may permit the Contractor to deduct and

- retain from the State's share $500 or ten (10)

9.343.

9344,

percent of the proceeds, whichever is less, forits .
selling and handling expenses.

The Contractor may transfer title to the property
to an eligible third party provided that, in such
cases, the Contractor must be entitled to
compensation for its attributable percentage of
the current fair market value of the property.

In cases where the Contractor fails to take
appropriate disposition actions, the State may
direct the Contractor to take disposition actions.

9.4. Propérty Relationship and Liens

9.4.1. Real property, equipment, and intangible property, that are
acquired or improved with State funds must be maintained
and preserved in good order by the Contractor for the
beneficiaries of the project or program under which the
property was acquired or improved. The State may.require
the Contractor to record liens or other appropriate notices of
record to indicate that personal or real property has been
acquired. or improved with State funds and that use and

- disposition conditions apply to the property.

9.5. This Section 9. survives termination and the Completion Date of this

~ Agreement.

§5-2024-DBH-37-COMMU-01
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. Exhibit C-1, Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services L
' Contractor Nama: - Riverbend Community Mental Health, inc.
Budget Request for:: Community Residence
-Budget Period: Y1324 - 830/24
Indirect Cost Rate {if applicable) 0.00%
Program Cost -
Program Cost - Funded
Line Item Funded byzl:HHS - SFY by DHHS - SFY 25 -
1. Salary & Wages $0 30
2. _Fringe Benefits [ $0 ) $0
3. Consultants $0 . %0
4.  Equipment :
. |Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 $0 $0
CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.
5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0 $0
5.(b) Supplies - Lab 30 $0
5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy 30 30
5.(d) Supplies - Medical 50 - %0
5.{e) Supplies - Office $0 : 30
6. Travel 0 $0
7. Software 1] $0
8. {a) Other - Marketing/Communications 1] 30
8. (b} Other - Education and Training $0 $0
8. (c) Other - Other (specily belaw) $0 —_ 30
- Center Isle Van $75,000 50
12 Bed Residential Builiding $150,000 $540,152
Other (please specify) $0 50
Other (please specify) ’ $0 30
Other (please specify) : $0 30
Other (please specily) . $0 $0
Other (please specify) : $0 50
9. Subrecipient Contracts $0 30 f
Total Girect Costs $225.000 $540,152
Total Indirect Costs $0 30
Subtotals _$225.000 $540,152
TOTAL. $765,152

]
(M.
Contra;:tor.lnitia!s:

5/22/2024
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SECTION A: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section. 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.5.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections .
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS |
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part |l of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require centification by contractors (and by inference, sub- contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that
a contractor (and by inference, sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the
Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each Agreement during the federal fiscal
year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon
which reliance is placed when the agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner )

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlied substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for wolatlon of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1.  The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; )
1.2.2. The Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

124. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse viclations occurring
in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the
Agreement be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph {a);

1.4. Nonfymg the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condltlon of
employment under the Agreement, the employee will

1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement and

1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after suc[r{ mnctlon
VL
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Federal Requirements , Date

Page 1 of 10




DocuSign Envelope ID: B62E38F7-170B-4ESB-A898-56ACC38041BC

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
E Exhibit D — Federal Requirements

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of-such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every contract
officer on whose contract activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal
agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected Agreement;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted

1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such.employee to participate satisfactorily. in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7.Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through mplementat:on
of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

[}

2. The Contractor may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done
in connection with the specific Agreement.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

r—os
. ke
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SECTION B: CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Section 318 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying,
and Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment {31 L1.S.C. 1352), and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the fotlowing
Certification: -

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES — CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
“Medicaid Program under Title XIX
*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certiﬁt;s, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a -
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement {(and by
specific mention sub-contractor). '

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
this Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub- contractor), the
underssgned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,

_in accordance with its instructions, see https.//omb.report/icr/201009-0348-022/doc/20388401

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers {including subcontracts, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is.a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or
entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file
the required certification shall be subject to a cwul penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than
$100,000 for each such failure.

r'-ﬂs
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'Exhibit D — Federal Requirements

SECTION C: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER

RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

v

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 12689 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding
Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following

Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.

By signing and submitting this Agreement, the prospective primary participant is prowdmg the
certification set out below

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in’
denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will
be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction,

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or defaulf. -

The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this Agreement is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” *person,” *primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “propesal,” and
"voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See

https:/iwww.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2004-titled4 5-vol 1/CFR-2004-title45-vol1-part76/context,

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this Agreement that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, dectared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

" A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification ofa prospective participant in a

lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
paiticipant may, but-is not required to, check the Nenprocurement Llst {of excluded parties)
hitps:/iwww.ecfr. govlcurrentftltle 22/chapter-Vipart-513. ] . r—m

L
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9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent

- person in the ordinary course of business dealings.,

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this -
transaction for cause or default. .

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

‘principals:

11.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency,

11.2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (Agreement) been convicted of |
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense
in.connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or
local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State
antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or

: -destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3.  Are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
{Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
{I}{b) of this certification; and

11.4.  Have not within a three-year period preceding this appllcatlonlproposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default,

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS.
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (Agreement), the prospective lower tier
. participant, as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and
its principals:

13.1.  Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for'debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federa!l department or
agency.

13.2.  Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (Agreement).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (Agreement) that it
will include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

} r—tl!-
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. SECTION D: CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification: :

The Contractor will comply, and will require any subcontractors to comply, with any applicable federal
requirements, which may include but are not limited to:

1.

Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(2 CFR 200).

The Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which

2.
prohibits recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment
practices or in the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national
origin, and sex. The Act requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity
Plan;

3. The Juvenie Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts
by reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under
this statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of
services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes
Equal Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

4. The Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.58.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or
activity);

5. The Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 784), which prohibits recipients of Federal
financial assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the
delivery of services or benefits, in any program or activity,

6. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and
local government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

7. The Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

8. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 {42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not mclude
employment discrimination;

9. 28 C.F.R. pl. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulatidns — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt.
42 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Cpportunity;
Policies and Procedures), Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based
and community organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles
and policy-making criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

10. 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense
Authorization Act {NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot
Program for Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects
employees against reprisal for cerlam whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants
and contracts.

11. The Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) which seeks to protect human health and the
environment from emissions that pollute ambient, or outdoor, air. s

. L
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12; The Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387) which establishes the basic structure for regulating

discharges of pollutants into the waters of the United States and regulating quality standards for
surface waters. )

13. Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) (41
U.S.C. 1908) which establishes administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where
contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as
appropriate. | | '

14. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708) which establishes that all
contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of
mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5).

" 15. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) which establishes

the recipient or subrecipient-wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit
organization regarding the subslitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental,
developmental, or research work under that *funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must
comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative
Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or government wide suspension or
debarment. i

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights,
to the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services,
and to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman,

- The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions-agreés by signature of the .

Contractor's representative_as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

>

(ere
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SECTION E: CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, alsg known as the Pro-Children Act of
1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portién of any indoor facility owned or leased
or contracted for by an entity and used routinely or reqularly for the provision of health, day care,
education, or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal
programs either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan
guarantee. The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded
solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment. Failure to comply with the provisjons of the law may result in the imposition of a civil
monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on
the responsible entity. '

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signaturé of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification: ;

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act
of 1994, _ ] .

r-**DS
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' SECTION F; CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after October.1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $30,000 or
more. If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a tota! award
equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of
the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information),,,'
the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
sub award or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1. Name of entlty
2. Amount of award
3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique Entity Identifier (SAM UE!; DUNS#)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1.  More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those -

_rfevenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.
Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30
days, in which the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the'GeneraI Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified i :n Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the followmg Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH

Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

r—-!ﬂ-
- [
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FORM A
As the Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate. L

KXLIGESADXKS .
1. The UEI (SAM‘gov) number for your entity is:

2. inyour business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts,
subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or
more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants,
and/or cooperative agreements?

& NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
if the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the éompensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: ' . Amount: _
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount;
Name: : Amoﬁnl:

Contractor Name: Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.

. DocuSigned by:
5/22/2024 ! Lisa Maddin
Date: Name: L15a Madden

Title:  president & CEo _r_ns'
e
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State of New Hampshire
Departﬁlent of State

CERTIFICATE

- 1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that RIVERBEND COMMUNITY
MENTAL HEALTH, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hamp§hire on
March 25, 1966. | further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is

in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business [D: 62509
Certificate Number: 0006652189

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

[ hereto sét my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 1st day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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4.

'CERT_IEICATE OF VOTE

Andrea D. Beaudoin, hereby certify that:

I am a duly elected Assistant Board Secretary of Riverbend Coxﬁmunigy Mental Health, Inc.

The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation, duly called and held on January 25, 2024, at which a quorum of the
Directors/shareholders were.present and voting.

VOTE: That the President & CEO. and/or Treasurer hereby is authorized on behalf of this
Corporation to enter into contract(s) with the State, Federal Government Managed Care
Organizations or any additional contract necessary for the continued operations of the Corporation
and to execute any and all documents, agreements and othér instruments, and any amendment,
revisions, or modlficatlons thereto, as (s)he may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed dnd remains in full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This
authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Vote. I further

. certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as

evidence that the person(s) listed below currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they
have full authority to.bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority
of any listed individual to bind the corporation in coritracts with the State of New Harnpshlre all
such limitations are expressly stated herein.’

Lisa K. Madden is-duly elected President & CEO of the Coxporatibn.

paea: 517 [ 9084 - (o Domiidin

* Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Andrea D. Beaudoin
Title: Assistant Board Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD.

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

RIVERCOM12

DATE (MWDODVYYYY)
1211212023

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDIﬂONAL INSURED the policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate doas not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lleu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
US! Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300
Bedford, NH 03110

ﬁmm Linda Jaeger, CIC

e Ext): 855 874-0123 TAIC, No):

Eﬁ‘n“ggss linda.jaeger@usi.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #-
855 874-0123 ‘INSURER A : Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058
INSURED : INSURER B : Granite State Healthcare & Human Svec WC NONAIC
Riverbend Community Mental Health Inc.
INSURER C :
P.O. Box 2032 . T——
Concord, NH 03301 - -
INSURERE :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES - CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

* INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

TR TYPE OF INSURANCE Iﬁ’&% POLICY NUMBER DO S ) MO ), LiMITS
A | X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY PHPK2607465 [40/01/2023110/01/2024 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
| cuamsamoe [ X] occur " T | PR IS s | $100,000
[ ] MED EXP (Any ona person) | 35,000
] ; PERSONAL 8 ADV INJURY | 31,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMrT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000
|| PoLICY I:I JECT I:I Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOP A5G | 53,000,000
QTHER: $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK2607466 10/01/2023(10/01/2024] GIMENEDSINGLELIMIT 1 4 600,000
X| any auTo : BODILY INJURY (Per parson} | §
|| S oy SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Pér accidert) | §
X Moy [X] D kool L O
. s
A | X|UMBRELLALIAB | X | occur PHUB883213 10/01/2023(10/01/2024 EACH OCCURRENCE 510,000,000
EXCESS UAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 310,000,000 -
oep | X| retenion $$10K $
B | e trm oaERe Loy - HCHS 20240000566 01/012024(01/04/2025 X S5 | [OF
ggl&ﬁgaﬂésg%gm&mggﬁ&ww@ NITA 3A States: NH E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000
{Mandatory In NH) E.L. DISEASE - Ea EMPLOYEE] 51,000,000
I yas, describe under f
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - PoLICY LimiT | 51,000,000
A |Professional PHPK2607465 10/01/2023(10/01/2024 $1,000,000 Ea. Incident
Liability $3,000,000 Aggregate

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS f LOCATIONS | VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Scheduls, may be attached H more space is requirad)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

NH DHHS
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

i

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ZPa Dy

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of1
#542868332/M42866167 :

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SNKZR
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Mission

We care for the behavioral health of our community.

Vision
We provide responsive, accessible, and effective mental health services.

We seek to sustain mental health and promote weliness.

We work as partners with consumers and families.

We view recovery and resiliency as an on-going process in ‘which chozce education, advocacy, and
hope are key elements.

We are fiscally prudent and work to ensure that necessary resources are available to support our
work, now and in the future. y

Values

I ' .
We value diversity and see it as essential to our success.

~

A

We value staff and their outstanding commitment and compassion for those we serve.

We value quality and strive to continuously improve our services by incorporating feedback from
consumers, families and community stakeholders.

We value community partnerships as a way o increase connections and resources that help
consumers and families achieve their goals.

Revised 8-23-07
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Kittell Branagan & Sargent
Ceriified Public Accountants

Varmont License #167

INDEPENDENT AUBITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have -audited the accompanying financial -statements of Riverbend Community Mental Health, inc. (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2023, and the
related statements of operations and cash flows for the year then ended, and the relatéd notes to the
financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Riverbend Communily Mental Health, Inc. as of June 30, 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its
cash flows for the’ year then ended in accordance with accounting prmcrples generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards; generally accepted in the United States of
America and the 'standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financlal Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of Riverbend Commumty Menta! Health, Inc. and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Responsibitities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation ‘and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principies generally accepted in the United States of America, a@nd for the

'desrgn implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
‘ presentatlon of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Riverbend Commuinity Mental
Health Inc.'s ability to.continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the “financial
statements are available to be issued.

\
154 North Main Stect, St Albans, Varmont 05478: | P 802.624.9531 | 800.499.9531 | 5‘802.2524.95_33

' www.kbstpa.com
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finaricial Statements

-Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud of efror, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Audiling Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would infiuence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Govermnment Audifing
Standards, we:

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.'s mternal control. ‘Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting pollmes used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

= Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about Riverbend Community Mental Heaith, Inc.’s ability to continue. as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matiers
that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The

accompanying schedule of functional revenues, schedule of functional expenses, analysis of BBH

revenues, receipts and receivables, analysis of client service fees and schedule of expenditures of federal
awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Pait 200, Uniform Administialive
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjecled to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the finahcial statements and certain additional, procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accouniting and other récords Used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statemenits themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States -of ‘America. In our opinion,
the schedule of functional revenues, schedule of functional expenses, analysis of BBH revenues, receipts
arid receivables, analysis. of client service fees and schedule of expenditurés of federal awards are fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 23,
2023, on our consideration of Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain prowsuons of laws, regulations; contracts, and grant -
agreenients and othér matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our esting of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.'s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in .accordance ‘with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.’s internal control
over financial reporting and cormpliance.

At Bronugit + S

St. Albans, Vermont
Qctober 23, 2023
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.

~STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30,
ASSETS
2023 2022
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ! $' 3590616 $ 18,387,254
Client service fees receivable, net 1,719,298 607,311
Other receivables ‘ 978,070 1,828,852
Investments 19,192,765 8,297,863
Prepaid expenses 389,714 377,808
Tenant security deposits 34,474 27,271
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 25,904,937 29,526,359
PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT, NET 12,689,322 11;654,9_12
RIGHT OF USE ASSET ' 213,596 g
TOTAL ASSETS = . $ 38,807,855 § 41,181,271
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES .
Accounts payable $ 178,528 % 536,862
" Accrued expenses . 1,643,916 1,454,556
Tenant security deposits 35,370 32,518
Accrued compensated absences 828,818 852,920
Current portion of long-term debt ' 250,000 1,372,442
Current portion of operating lease liabilities 47,459 -
Deferred revenue : ' - 816,586
~ TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,984,091 5,105,884
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term debt, less current portion 5,385,000 5,635,000
Unamortized debt issuance costs : ' {150,381) (171,183)
Long-term debt, net of unamortized debt issuance costs 5,234,619 5,463,817
Operating lease liabilities ' 166,137 -
" Interest rate swap liability 129,024 (76,335)
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 5,528,780 5,387,482
NET ASSETS . ,
Net Assets without donor restrictions _ 27,192,636 27,840,003
Net Assets with donor restrictions . 3,101,348 2,847,902
"TOTAL NET ASSETS 30,293,984 30,687,905
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $-38,807,855 $ 41,181,271

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

1
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Years Ended June 30,

2023
Net Assets Net Assets
without Donor with Donor
Restrictions Restrictions All Funds 2022
PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES '
Public support - '
Federal “\' $ 783,594 % - % 783,564 1,570,285
State of New Hampshire -- BBH - ! 2,597,108 - 2,597,108 3,266,762
In-kind donations ' 1,826 - 1,826 165,584
Contributions 89,703 91,800 181,503 206,517
Other 2,762,907 2 2,762,907 1,515,124
Total Public Support 6,235,138 91,800 6,326,938 6,724,272
Revenues - . ‘ i
-Client service fees, net of provision for bad debts 26,711,400 - 26,711,400 27,182,609
Other 2,884 412 - 2,884,412 3,158,204
Net assets released from restrictions 26,929 (26,929) - -
Total Revenues 29,622,741 {26,929) 29,595,812. 30,350,813
TOTAL PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES 35,857,879 64,871 35,922,750 37,075,085
PROGRAM AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES i
Children and adolescents 6,402,920 - 6,402,920 5,882,917
Emergency services 1,381,933 - 1,381,933 1,127,714
Behavioral Crisis Treatment Ctr 1,303 - 1,303 727,261
_ACT Team 1,768,358 - 1,768,358 1,724,146
Outpatient - Concord 6,377,305 - 6,377,305 5,865,371
Qutpatient - Franklin ) 3,235,104 - 3,235,104 2,797,721
Multi-Service Team - Community Support Program 8,670,250 - 8,670,250 7.860,088
Mobile Crisis Team 2,380,620 - 2,380,620 2,291,985
Community Residence - Twitchell 1,011,006 - 1,011,006 1,141,200
Community Residence - Fellowship 8,132 - 8,132 884,593
Supportive Living - Community 1,458,790 - 1,459,790 1,373,256
Bridge Housing' 646,403 - 646,403 199,834
Other Non-BBH 1,721,653 - 1,721 ,653. 2,141,212
Administrative 1,799,674 - 1,799,674 87,769 )
TOTAL PROGRAM & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 36,864,451 = 35,864,451 34,105,067
EXCESS OF PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUE ) o
OVER EXPENSES FROM OPERATIONS (1.006,572) 64,871 (941,701) 2,970,018
OTHER INCOME {LOSS)
Gain on sale of assets 15,500 - 15,500 S
Investment Income (loss) 520,063 188,575 708,638 (877,301)
Loss on closing of "19 swap agreement {12,210} - (12,210) -
Change in fair value of interest rate swap (164,148) - (164,148) 358,293
TOTAL OTHER INCOME {LOSS) 359,205 188,575 547,780 (619,008)
TOTAL INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS (647,367 253,446 (393,921) 2,351,010
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 27,840,003 2,847,902 30,687,905 28,336,895
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 27,192636 $ 3,101,348 $ 30,203,984 $ 30,687,905

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

2
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i Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended June 30,

2023 2022
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Changes in net assets ' . $  (393921) $ 2,351,010
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net )

cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 1,062,540 1,076,666
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments {483,637) 1,237,505
Gain on sale of assets ' (15,500) (28,077)
Change in fair value of interest rate swap 164,148 (358,293)
Loss on closing of '19 swap agreement -~ : _ 12,210 3
Changes in: '
Client service fee receivables (1,111,987) 336,757
Other receivables 850,782 (166,661)
Prepaid expenses (11,908) (203.604)
Tenant security deposits . (4,357) 6,364
Accounts payable and accrued expenses {233,076)- 734,154
Deferred revenue ) (816,586) 809,074
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (981,284) 5,794,895

3

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets (2,076,147) {1,569,415)
Proceeds from sale of assets 15,500 -
Proceeds from sale of investment in BIS - 137,176
- Investment activity, net (10,411,265} (245,126)
NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (12,471,912) (1,677,365)
© CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal payments on long-term debt (1,372,442) (253,350)
Proceeds from closing of ‘19 swap agreement 29,000 -
NET CASH USED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES (1.343,442) (253,350)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (14,796,638) 3,864,180
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 14,523,074

18,387,254

CASH AT END OF YEAR $ - 3580616 $ 18,387,254

-

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash payments for interest : : $ 191,058 § 242,098

See Accompanying Nectes to Financial Statements.

3



DBcuSign Envelope ID: B62E38F7-17084E5B-AB98-59ACC38041BC

NOTE 1

Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization _
Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc. (Riverbend) is a nonprofit corporation, organized

under New Hampshire law to provide services in the areas of mental health, and related non-
mental health programs. The organization qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction
under Section 170 (b){1){a) and has been classified as an organization that is not a private

“foundation under Section 509(a)(2). It operates in the Merrimack and Hillsborough countles

of New Hampshire. -

Income Taxes
Riverbend, is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code. Therefore, it is exempt from income taxes on its exempt functlon income,

Consideration has been given to uncertain tax positions. The federal income tax returns for
the years ended after June 30, 2020, remain open for potential examination by major tax
jurisdictions, generally for three years after they were filed.

Related Organizations )

Riverbend is an affiliate of Capital Region Health Care (CRHC). CRHC is a comprehensive
healthcare service system consisting of one hospital, one visiting nurse association, real
estate holding companies and a variety of physician service companies. The affiliation exists
for the purpose of integrating and improving the delivery of healthcare services to the
residents of the central New Hampshire area.

Penacook Assisted Living Facility (PALF) was managed by Riverbend. PALF is a 501(c)}{(3)
organization and operates the “John H. Whitaker Place” assisted care community located in
Penacook, New Hampshire. PALF terminated all management services from Riverbend on
August 5, 2022.

Basis of Presentation : _

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The financial
statements are presented in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958 dated August 2016, and the provisions of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) “Audit and Accounting Guide for
Not-for-Profit Organizations” (the “Guide™). (ASC) 958-205 was effective January 1, 2018.

Under the provisions of the Guide, net assets and revenues and gains and losses are
classified based on the existence or absence of donor-lmposed restrictions. Accordmgly the
net assets of Riverbend and changes therein are classified as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of
Riverbend. Riverbend's board may designate assets without restrictions for specific
operational purposes from time to time.
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NOTE 1

Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

ISUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors
and grantors. Some donor-restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be
met by actions of the Non-Profit Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor
restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be
maintained in perpetuity.

Estimates :
The preparation of financial stateme_nts in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain

- reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those

estimates.

Proge.rty
Property is recorded at cost or, if donated, at fair market value at the date of donation.

Depreciation is provided using both straight-line and accelerated methods, over the
estimated useful lives of the assets.

Depreciation

The cost of property, equipment and leasehold improvements is depreciated over the

. estimated useful life of the assets using the straight-line method. Estlmated useful lives

range from 3 to 40 years.

Grants

Riverbend receives a number of grants from and has entered into various contracts with the
State of New Hampshire and the federal government related to the dellvery of mental health
services.

Vacation Pay and Fringe Benefits )

Vacation pay is accrued and charged to the programs when earned by the employee. Fringe
benefits are allocated to the appropriate program expense based on the percentage of actual
time spent on the programs.

In-Kind Donations

Various 'public and private entltles have donated facilities for Riverbend's operational use.
The estimated fair value of such donated services is: recorded as offsetting revenues and
expenses in the accompanying statement of revenue support and expenses of general
funds.

Revenue _
Grant revenue received by Riverbend is deferred until the related services are provided.

+ Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivables are recorded based on the amount billed for serwces provided, net of
respective allowances.
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" NOTE 1

Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Policy for Evaluating Collectability of Accounts:Receivable

In evaluating the collectability of accounts receivable, Riverbend analyzes past results and
identifies trends for each major payor source of revenue for the purpose of estimating the
appropriate amounts of the allowance for doubtful accounts. Data in each major payor
source is regularly reviewed to evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts.
Specifically, for receivables relating to services provided to clients having third-party
coverage, an allowance for doubtful accounts and a corresponding provision for bad debts
are established for amounts outstanding for an extended:- period of time and for third-party
payors’ experiencing financial difficulties, for receivables relating to self-pay clients, a
provision for bad debts is made in the period services are rendered based on experience
indicating the inability or unwillingness of clients to pay amounts for which they are financially
responsible.

Based on management's assessment, Riverbend provides for estimated uncollectible
amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to a valuation allowance. Balances that
remain outstanding after Riverbend has used reasonable collection efforts are written off
through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable.

Riverbend has recorded an estimate in the allowance for doubtful accounts of $774,899 and
$882,275 as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The allowance for doubtful accounts
represents 31% and 59% of total client service accounts receivable as of June 30, 2023 and
2022, respectively. ' :

Client Service Revenue
Riverbend recognizes -client service revenue in accordance with ASC Topic 606. Client -
Service Revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration the corporation
expects to receive in exchange for the services provided. These amounts are due from
patients or third-party payers and include variable consideration for retroactive adjustments,
if any, under reimbursement programs. Performance obligations are determined based on
the nature of the services provided. Client service revenue is recognized as performance

- obligations are satisfied. Riverbend recognized revenue for mental health services in

accordance with ASC 608, Revenue for contracts with Customers. Riverbend has

- determined that these services included under the daily or monthly fee have the same timing

and pattern of transfer and are a series of distinct services that are considered one
performance obligation which is satisfied over time. Riverbend receives revenues for

. servicesunder various third-party payer programs which include Medicaid and other third-

party payers. The transaction price is based on standard charges’ for services provided to
residents, reduced by applicable contractual adjustments, discounts, and implicit pricing
concessions., The estimates of contractual adjustments and- discounts are based on
contractual agreements, discount policy, and historical collection experience. The corporation
estimates the transaction price based on the terms of the contract wuth the payer,
correspondence with the payer and historical trends.

Client service revenue (net of contractual allowances and provision for bad debts)
recognized during the year ended June 30, 2023 totaled $26,711,400, of which $25,656,099
was revenue from third-party payors and $1,055,301 was revenue from self-pay clients.
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-Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Rlverbend has agreements with third-party payors that provide payments to Riverbend at
established rates. These payments include: .

New Hampshire Medicaid
Riverbend is reimbursed for services rendered to Medlcald clients on the basis of fixed-
Fee for Service rates.

New Hampshire Healthy Families
This is a managed care organization that reimburses Riverbend Medicaid funds for

~ services rendered on a fee for service and capitated structure.

. Beacon Wellsense '

This is a managed care organization that reimburses Riverbend Médicaid funds for
services rendered on a fee for service and capitated structure.

Amerihealth )
This is a managed care organization that reimburses Riverbend Medicaid funds for
services rendered on a fee for service and capitated structure.

State of New Hampshire
Riverbend is reimbursed for certain expenses through support from the State of New

Hampshire general funds accounts. Assertive Continuous Treatment Teams (ACT) for
both adults and children, Mobile Crisis Teams, Refugee Interpreter Services are such
accounts.

Concord Hospital

Riverbend is reimbursed for certain projects through support from the Concord Hospital

for behavioral health services rendered in the emergency room inpatient psychiatric unit
" and for general administrative services. All are reimbursed on a contractual basis.

Approximately 82% of net client service revenue is from participation in the state-sponsored
Medicaid programs for the year ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Laws and
regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation and change. As a result, it is possible that recorded estimates could change
materially in the near term.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements
Riverbend uses an interest-rate swap to mitigate interest-rate risk on our bonds payable

(Note 8). The related liability or asset is reported at fair value in the statements of financial
position, and unrealized gains or losses are included in the statement's operations.

Advertising :
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Total costs were $148, 829 and $147 475 at

June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

SUMMARY.OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

New Accounting Standards _
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which supersedes j

existing guidance for accounting for leases under Topic 840, Leases. The FASB also
subsequently issues the following additional ASUs, which amend and clarify Topic 842: ASU’
2018-01, Land Easement Practical Expedient for Transitions to Topic 842; ASU 2018-10,
Codification Improvements to Topic 842, Leases, ASU 2018-20, Narrow-scope
Improvements for Lessors, and ASU 2019-01, Leases (Topic 842). Codification
Improvements. The most significant change in the new leasing guidance is the requirement
to recognize the right-to-use (ROU) assets and lease |Iabl|ItIE.‘S for operating leases on the
balance sheet.

Riverbend elected to adopt these ASUs effective July 1, 2022, and utilized all of the practical

expedients. The adoption had a material impact on Riverbend’s balance sheet but did not
have a material impact on the income statement. The most significant impact was the
recognition of ROU assets and lease liabilities for operating leases. The accounting for
finance leases remained substantially unchanged. Adoption of the standard required
Riverbend to restate amounts as of July 1, 2022, resulting in an increase in operating lease
ROU assets of $220 101, and increase in operatlng lease liabilities of $220,101.

CASH

At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the carrying amount of cash deposits was $3,625,090 and
$18,414,525 and the bank balance was $3,915,515 and $18,484,523. Of the bank balance,
$585,399 and $5,623,931 was covered by federal deposit insurance under written agreement
between the bank and Riverbend, $3,330,116 and $7,007,442 was offset by debt, and the
remaining $-0- and $5,853,150 was uninsured.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2023 2022
CLIENT SERVICE RECEIVABLES .

Due from clients | : $ 805209 $ 422447
Receivable from insurance companies : 452,767 409,903
Medicaid receivable 1,072,155 - 511,061
Medicare receivable 173,853 154,045
Housing fees (9,687) (7,870)

_ 2,494 297 1,489,586
Allowance for doubtful accounts (774,999) (882,275)

$ 1,719,298 $ 607,311
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
) June 30, 2023

NOTE 3 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

2023 2022

OTHER RECENABLES

BBH $ 177,879 $ 423452
Federal Grants 211,082 655,290
Merrimack County Drug Court 70,920 216,397
Concord Hospital 235,638 -
MCO Directed Payments 221,756 443238
Other . 60,795 90475

$ 978,070 $ 1,828,852

NOTE4  INVESTMENTS

Riverbend has invested funds in various pooled funds with The Colony Group. The
approximate breakdown of these investments are as follows at June 30,:

Unrealized Market

2023 Cost Gain (Loss) Value
Cash & Money Market $ 1258057 % - $ 1,258,057
U.S. Treasuries 5,321,477 48,954 5,370,430

CDs & BAs 3,867,706 {7,526} 3,860,180

Corporate Bonds 4 1,822,419 {191,593) 1,630,826
Exchange Traded Funds 3,060,435 511,151 3,571,586
. Equities ) 91,526 (8,391) 83,136
Mutual Funds 3,380,009 38,540 3,418,550

$ 18801629 $ 391,135 $ 19,192,765

Unreglized Market

2022 Cost ¥ Gain (Loss) Value
Cash & Money Market $ 218,163 § - $ 218,163
Corporate Bonds 1,797,021 (180,003) 1,617,018
Exchange Traded Funds 2,697,443 - 291,102 2,988,545
Equities ' 85,664 (16,218) 69,446
Mutua! Funds 3,542 649 {137,958) 3,404,691

$ 8340940 % (43.077) $ 8,297,863
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NOTE 4

NOTE &

" Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

INVESTMENTS (qohtinued)

~ Investment income (losses) consisted of the following at June 30,:

2023 \2022

Interest and dividends $ 296992 $ 202,906
Realized gains (losses) (21,127} “ 115,919
Unrealized gains (losses) 483,637  (1,237,505)
‘Fee expenses (50.864) . (58,621)
TOTAL $ 708638 $ (977,301)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Professional accounting standards established a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value,

The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described
below:

‘Basis of Fair Value Measurement

Level 1- Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are "accessible at the
measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities.

Level 2- Quoted prices in markets that are not considered to be active or financial
instruments for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or
indirectly. .

Level 3- - Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the fair
value measurement and unchservable.

All investments are categorized as Level 1 and recorded at fair value, as of June 30, 2023.

As required by professional accounting standards, investment assets are classified in their
entirety based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

10
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.

- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

NOTE 6 OTHER INVESTMENTS

Behavioral Information System _

Riverbend entered into a joint venture with another New Hampshire Community Mental
Health Center. Under the terms of the joint venture, Riverbend invested $52,350 for a 50%
interest in Behavioral Information Systems (BIS). The investment was being accounted for
under the equity method. ' ‘ b

Riverbend sold its 50% investment in BIS on December 31, 2021, for $137,176 for a gain of
$28,077, which is recorded in other revenues on the statement of functional revenues for the
year ended June 30, 2022.

NOTE 7 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property an_d equipment, at cost:

2023 2022
S :
Land $ 1275884 $ 1,275,884
Buildings 19,147,648 17,789,504
Leasehold Improvements 825,362 541,181
Furniture and Fixtures 4,700,894 4,479,040
Equipment 2,221,405 2,268,463
Software licenses 215,568 211,893
CIP : 991,115 894,251
i 29,377,876 27,460,216
Accumulated Depreciation {16,688,554) (15,805,304)
NET BOOK VALUE ui $ 12,689,322 $11,654,912
NOTE 8 LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consisted of the following as of June 30, :
2023 2022
Mortgage payable, $1,200,000 note dated 6/10/19, secured
by Pleasant St. property. Interest at 1.67%, annual
principal and interest payments of $5,630 with
a final balloon payment of $946,441 due _
“June, 2029. ¥ $: - $ 1,132,442

11
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NOTE 8

\ Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

Bond payable, TD Banknorth dated February 2003, interest
at a fixed rate of 3.06% with annual debt service
payments of varying amounts ranging from $55,000 in
~ July 2004 to $375,000 in July 2034. Matures July 2034.
The bond is subject to various financial covenant ' :
calcutations. 2,575,000 2,725,000
Bond payable, NHHEF A dated September 2017, interest
_at a fixed rate of 1.11% through a swap agreement t
expiring 9/1/2028 annual debt service payments of varying
amounts ranging from $55,000 in July 2017 to $4756,000
in July 2038. Matures July 2038, The bond is subject to
various financial covenant calculations. 3,060,000 3,150,000
- - 5,635,000 7,007,442
Less: Current Portion _ (250,000) {1,372,442)
Long-term Debt 5,385,000 . 5,635,000
g Less: Unamortized debt issuance costs ' (150,381} (171,183}

$ 5234619 $'5,463,817

‘The aggregate principal payments of the long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter
are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Amount
2024 $ 250,000
2025 260,000
2026 270,000
2027 285,000
2028 295,000
Thereafter __ 4,275,000

$ 5,635,000

Riverbend has an irrevocable direct pay letter of credit which is associated with the 2008
bond. The letter of credit is for the favor of the Trustee of the bond for the benefit of the bond
holders under the bond indenture dated September 1, 2017. The letter is for $3,395,000 and
expires September 1, 2028.

12
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NOTE 8

NOTE 10

NOTE 11

NOTE 12

Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' June 30, 2023 p

LINE OF CREDIT

As of June 30, 2023, Riverbend had available a line of credit with an upper limit of
$1,500,000. At that date no borrowings were outstanding against the line of credit. These
funds are available with an interest rate equal to 1.5% above the Wall Street Journal Prime
Rate with a minimum interest rate of 4%. This line of credit is secured by all accounts
receivable of the company and is due on demand. The line of credit matures May 31, 2024,

DEFERRED INCOME

2023 2022

Concord Hospital/Dartmouth Hitchcock $ - 7,512
liness Mgmt Recovery Award ; . 12,800
ARPA Grant - 796,274
TOTAL DEFERRED INCOME - $ - $ 816,586

RELATED PARTY
Riverbend collected $-0- and $51,199 for property management services, and $-0- and
$37,064 for contracted housekeeping services during the years ended June 30, 2023 and

2022, respectively. As disclosed previously in Note 1, PALF terminated all management
services from Riverbend on August 5, 2022.

OPERATING LEASES

Riverbend has operating leases for office equipment. The leases have a remaining lease
term of 5 years. ' :

The following summarizes the line items in the balance sheets which include amounts for
operating and finance leases as of June 30, 2023:

Operating Lease

Operating lease right—bf—use-assets, net $ 213596
Other current liabilities ; $ 47,459
‘Other long-term Iiabilities_ 166,137

$ 213,596

13
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

NOTE 12. OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The following summarizes the weighted average remaining lease term and discount rate as
of June 30, 2023; '

Weighted Average Remaining Lease Term _
Operating Lease 5 Years

Weighted Average Discount Rate
Operating Lease 3.00%

The maturities of lease liabilities as of June 30, 2023 were as follows:

Years Ending

June 30,: .

2024 $ 47,459

2025 ' 47,459

2026 47,459

2027 47,459

_ 2028 ' ) 39,924
Total Lease Payments 229,760
Less Amount Representing Interest (16,164)
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments $ 213,596

The following summarizes the line items in the income statements which include the
components of lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2023:

Operating lease expense included in SG&A $ 7,535

The following summarizes cash flow information related to leases for the year ended June
30, 2023:

CasH paid for amounts included in the measurement of
lease liabilities: .
Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 7,535

NOTE 13 "EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN
Riverbend makes contributions to a 403(b} plan on behalf of its employees. This program

covers substantially all full-time employees. During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022,
such contributions were $427,679 and $382,464, respectively. '

14
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

NOTE 14 LIQUIDITY

The following reflects Riverbend’s financial assets available within one year of June 30, 2023
for general expenditures are as follows:

Cash and Cash Equivalents - $ 3,590,616
Accounts Receivable (net) ; ; P 2,697,368
Investments 19,192,765

Financial assets, at year end 25,480,749

Less those unavailable for general expenditures within one year due to:

Restricted by donor with time or purpose restrictions (3,101,348)
5 Financial assets available within one
year for general expenditures ' $ 22,379,401

Restricted deposits, and reserves are restricted for specific purposes and therefore are not
available for general expenditures.

Investments in real estate and partnerships are not included as they are not considered to be
available within one year.

»

As part-of the Riverbend's liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial
assets to be available as its general expendutures liabilities and other obligations come due.,

NOTE 15 NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net Assets with donor restrictions are restricted and summarized as follows as of June 30,;

2023
Purpose Perpetual
, Restricted in Nature Total
Babcock Fund $ 144835 § - - $ 144835
Capital Campaign Fund - 2,742_,129 2742129
Development Fund 214,384 - 214,384

$ 389,219 $.2,742,120 §$ 3,101,348

15
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NOTE 15

Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
NOTES TOC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (continued)

2022

Purpose Perpetual
Restricted in Nature ~ Total
Babcock Fund % 144835 § - $ 144835
Capital Campaign Fund - 2,553,554 2,553,554
Development Fund 149,513 - 149,513

$ 294,348 $ 2,553,554. $ 2,847,902

On December 28, 1978 the Jo Babcock Memorial Fund was established by Henry Frances
Babcock of Belmont, MA, in memory of their daughter. Designated for the treatment of
outpatients, in particular those who are unable to pay for services, the Babcock Fund, may

.also be used to purchase equipment for research or treatment.

The initial gift consisted of 250 shares of Merck stock, in street form. The stocks were
subsequently sold. In 1979, the Babcock Family sent addmonal funds in the form of bonds,
etc. !

Capital Campaign Fund — (Charfes Schwab)

In the spring of 2003, Riverbend Community Mental Health completed a campaign seeking to
raise capital support from community leaders, families, friends, corporations, and
foundations. The campaign was intended to identify urgent capital projects that could expand
and imprave services to arelatively underserved population of clients.

The overall campaign is also intended to provide new and improved fécilities for the

" Riverbend community, and enhance the services provided to the patients at Riverbend

Community Mental Health, Inc..
The Development Fund - (Charles Schwab}

The Development Fund consists of agreements with various corporations and foundaticns
that specifically designate their contributions to be utilized for supporting program service
expenses; funds are restricted in order for Riverbend to ensure that almost all of each
individual contribution received can go toward supporting programs and initiatives that
benefit the community. .

16 .
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023 -

NOTE 15 NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (continued)

Below is the breakdown of the restricted activity above for the year ending June 30,

2023 - 2022
Investment Income $ 74874 $ - 123
Realized gain (loss) on Investments (9,213) -
Unrealized gain (loss) on Investments 142,050 °~ (310,313}
Investment Fees : {19,136) -
Total Annuity Activity 188,575  (310,190)
New Grants : 91,800 3,150
Net assets released from restrictions (26,929) (164)
Beginning Assets with Donor Restrictions 2,847,902 3,155,106
Ending Assets with Donor Restrictions’ ©$ 3,101,348 §$ 2,847,902

NOTE 16 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On October 16, 2023, Riverbend purchased a building for $2,150,000. The building was
purchased with the intent of consolidating all of the administrative staff to one location. With
this purchase, Riverbend intends to sell two bUIldlngS This transaction may entail paying
down bond balances.

In accordance with professional accounting standards, Riverbend has evaluated subsequent
events through October 23, 2023, which is the date the financial statements were available to
be issued. Events requiring recognition as of June 30, 2023, have been incorporated into the
financial statements herein.

17
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Riverband Commurnity Mental Hexlth Inc,
, SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023, with

Comparutive Tomats for 2022
. Cheices, RCA,
Emergercy Behavioral  Inpatient, Autlam, Muki- Mobile Comem, Coxmen, Comm,
203 Total Tetal Chidren& | Services' Crisis - DOrug Courl Service Crisis Res. Res, Supp, Bridgs Other
Total Admin. Programs A Assessment  Trestment Cir.  {NonERgiblest _ACT Team. Team Team Twiched Felowihip Living Housing __ (Non-BBH} Fair7]
PROGRAM SERVICE FEES L - .
Net Clieni Fees $ 1055001 3 - $ 1055301 3 203,855 3 25458 3 {1.045) § 205,364 3 47237 % 425461 § 35059 3§ 43483 % -3 18,745 § 2522 s 53154 § 885,790
HMO's i 834726 - 534,725 122,275 2626 110 251848 13504 218,334 18,208 N - © 155 - 3,662 443,186
Blue Cross/Blue Shigkd 1129044 - 1,129,044 352,756 24,212 {411) 445,829 13.9%0 252,692 24,798 = = - . §.228 942,581
Medicaid - 21,792,409 - 21,792,409 5173411 192,257 1,898 1.563.507 1058811 11,460,982 344,696 1,280,731 {10,355} 433,047 7842 285,522 23,148,21%
Medicace TE2.eN - 762,991 {83) {1,028} . - 226,275 20092 517,787 {274) 468 - a2 - {266} 750,229
Other Insurance 399,358 65 399,293 85,296 3,290 (20) 185,548 8.861 124,701 6,950 a87 - 187 154 1,685 §20,102
Other Program Fees 97574 136,268 201,205 2,380 - - 24 099 L - - 138,448 = 248,761 384,008 {170} 404,522
PROGRAM SALES
Service 2884412 140,380 2,744,052 - 932,545 = T 1,780,074 . 12,124 v E - 1,273 - 18,038 3,158,204
United Way 2530 . 25.303 1,138 228 - 20,282 ne 1,956 Ar2 34 - 363 37 274 4123
LocalCounty Govl 1499780 1,451,780 48,000 - - - 20,500 13,750 13,750 = - . - - - 228,540
Denations/Contributions 181,503 - 181.503 48,262 5,567 - 24,953 7.794 AL 11,515 6.714 . B840 804 19,195 208,517
Other Public Support 1,090,083 H 1.090.083 279.545 5.112 - 495215 1,762 111,949 2603 1.2 15392 5.902 174312 1,178,897
FEDERAL FUNDING 3
Other Faderal Grants - ® 3 = = = = . - & = a = - 1533887
PATH 783,564 - 783504 . - - . . - ’ . : . LUV : 745,360 38,618
IN-KIND DONATIONS 1826 1,828 e - = T = = g B B L o = = 185,584
OTHER REVENUES 147,741 24,600 12311 129 11 - 488 16 93 2 11 1236 32 2 13 107564
BBH 2,597,108 A4 547 2552 481 200058 - - L 371,250 - 1.633.747 . - - 8127 124,279 3,286 782
TOTAL PROGRAM
REVENUES $ 35922730 8 1799674 3§ MAZIOTE § £4500312 51196276 3 472 3 5242775 5 1,557,386 3% 13185549 3 2077826 3 1471376 3 $11.981 3 1655753 % G238 5 14242784 3 37075085
2 5
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PERSONNEL COSTS
Salary ZWages
Empltyes Benelts
Payroll Taxes

PROFESSIONAL FEES
Substtute Staft
Accounting
Legal Fees
Omet Prot. Fees/Corul.

STAFF DEV. & TRAINING
Jounads & Pub.
Conferences end Comv.

OCCUPANCY COSTS
Rent
Hemting Costa
QOttver Utthes
Mainiensnce and Repain
Taxes
Ctter Costs

CONSUMABLE SUPPLIES
Offce
BulktingMousethiok
Educationa¥Traking
Food
Medical

ADVERTISING

PRINTING

TELEPHONE/S

COMMUNICATIONS

POSTAGE/SHIPPING

TRANSPORTATION
St
Chervts

INSURANCE
Malpractice wnd Bonding
Vehicles
Comp. Property & Liab,

INTEREST EXPENSE

IN-KIND EXPENSE

DEPRECIATION AND

AMORTIZATION

EOQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

MEMBERSHIP DUES

DTHER EXPENDITURES

TOTAL EXPENSES

ADMIN ALLOCATION

TOTAL PROGRAM
EXPENSES

SURPLUSKDEFICIT)

Riverbend Communty Mental Heath Inc.
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPEMSES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023, with
Comparative Totas. for 2022

Choices, RCA,
Auttam, MuR- Mobils Comm. Comm. Comm.
073 Toesd Totsl Children & Sarncey Crists Orug Court a Service Cristy Re3. Res. Supp. Brkipe Othes

Totels Adrin, Programs Adoleseents  _Asstssment  Trestewrd Cu.  _(Non-Edgibles) _ ACT Team Tesm Team Twichel Felowship Livirg Houing {héon-BEH) 2022
$ 237774 % 4037408 3 19740013 § 363537 8 854,841 ¥ - 8 28302492 3 1.043992 § G:Nﬂ.MD S 1420725 8 $27,200 % - 8 650,007 3 12254 % MTETE 3 21201402
4916478 338587 3,997,961 809,852 85,157 - 825,841 242,829 1,571,752 165,628 97,695 an 120,581 68,84 208,702 4475324
1,752,497 304556 1447 941 269.454 59,604 285117 77190 LAs5 113,540 41547 - 49,117 8,652 83,883 1,649,078
384,247 50,281 333,968 = o E 55,175 x 278,791 £ = - B £ =
aT5m AT420 - . - . - . . N B . s . - 48,130
34,480 156 324 81 12 54 17 WS 2% 12 L 20 2 1% 45342
670,568 418,274 252,294 48,201 441 - 68,188 3408 107,196 5,301 1891 - 2,30 1,550 4,793 1,030,242
6.060 2801 A9 009 e 9T 7 208 142 312 E - - 18 7096
97,764 30,254 67,510 6,923 599 - 22595 1,162 24,17 627 .14] - 2,780 2 5700 84 843
487,812 43,235 424 577 20.50% 206 . 19.953 1220 2.458 592 H E 0o 377,653 4 137.076
78,445 9.357 67,088 7.352 2,174 E 11427 1457 12738 2,845 3.906 = 20257 118 4,838 23,505
218,875 40,301 173,074 1 23,523 5,090 - 30,606 6.989 435,108 8,804 19076 - 27,651 810 12,323 225,877
183,405 26,487 156,918 12,569 4819 - 23,110 -3,597 32,497 11,7654 2,790 - 39,197 an 15,144 313,575
21,840 - 21,840 - - - = = = N - - 21,840 . . 21,219
82,324 48,994 13,330 2,084 138 701 B0 421 3,91 88 1,232 - 4,445 53 ¥ 11 423,904
621,734 476,548 145,126 B g [ 25543 227 A5 30 10652 [ Xeg13 L 789 2400 7.062 64,522
75334 8,575 66,759 5,835 T - 4423 1,956 11,951 14748 10,242 - 14,488 554 2,040 iral
24,989 - 24,983 21,109 . . B10 07 2,2 . = E - i 728 -
55853 20808 35,045 3918 20% - 3515 532 2,883 80% 18,849 - 3,125 34 1.073 45151
T2.893 <01 T2.5%2 2047 498 55,033 245 1970 347 498 . 1,420 20 10442 320537
140,823 145439 3,350 - - - 663 - - - 520 - 535 - 1,574 147,475
19,707 10,205 9497 2,254 378 2,083 184 ~ 082 229 - 5 12 290 16,427
374,555 84,014 310,543 47 861 55.948 567 §1.596 30158 70,504 19.744 17.430 = 18,077 1,042 17,018 72,458
0,387 1.547 18420 4.Dog 435 - 2253 95 8,058 1333 34 - 488 82 Fat ] TN
340,906 41,253 289,653 73,509 49 g 2683 24,561 183,048 ER 3] 1.851 = [ LE ] 7.8037 320,702
29,299 6.87% 22,424 354 70 . 431 121 DS 2128 2,729 - 1203 1 5,792 8,291
240,097 20424 20471 27,957 25,148 . J4670 10.0)4 43,578 35.632 5.147 - 9323 2,35 20,591 183,027
21,325 7,31 13,954 2,348 - - - - - 1.842 4 854 - 4,910 - - 18,150
38473 8,430 30,043 8,015 872 . 6428 1,158 8,888 754 23 5,088 125 1817 65,704
391.058 93,297 ¥2.651 5,450 35,305 11,586 2258 - 8233 - E - - 828 242,008
1,828 1,828 - - . ar . - - . - - - - - 185,584
1.062.540 360817 g 145,777 2163 199,193 = 151,809 3565 19.005 = 112823 . 37 " 1,075,686
35,548 11,134 24,414 7.840 1,323 - 332) 1,008 5,094 1,485 1,740 - 1,270 181 1,488 39327
42212 37385 A.927 ars - . 337 - 1.071 H K " o k3 7 56.724
THILITD T2 AES B 0T BT BT 58T 1 79, Gag 2213 b 0TE F1879 18 88 . SR 1 Al 216X Jvh S8
36,064,451 7,424,408 29,440,043 5,380,220 1,167 541 1.274 5432704 1,476,055 10,019,759 1,939,032 10,276 40 1,153,915 591,918 1,488,512 34,405,067

- 15.624.734) 5.624.734 1.042.700 244,392 29 S44 604 292303 1.885.595 420784 200.730 8.092 305.375 54,425 255 141
.
.

36864451 1.793.674 35,064,777 8 402 920 1,381,933 1.303 §.377.305 1.768.358 11.905, 354 2,330 620 1,011,008 8,132 * 1,459 790 45 403 1.721,65 34,105.057
3 {341.701) § - 3 {841.701) § 568.112 § (185.857} § (8311 § {1.134,330} § (230972} §  1.280.185 $ {302.764) 8 482370 § 101829 § {894.037} 3 (18017 % [97.389) §  2970.018
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: Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.

ANALYSIS OF BBH REVENUES, RECEIPTS AND RECEIVABLES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

- Receivable BBH
From Revenues Receivable
BBH Per-Audited from
Beginning Financial Receipts BBH
of Year Statements for Year End of Year
Contract Year, June 30, 2023 $ 432026 $ 2597108 $ (2,851,255) $ 177,879

Analysis of Receipts:

BBH & Federal Fund Payments.

. 0712122 8,542
07/15/22 179,649,
00/20/22 28,360
11/02/22 164,811
11/30/22 22,143
10/04/22 44,206
11/01/22 29,978
11/21/22 26,641
11/30/22 326,039
12/07/22 42,788
12109122 169,389
12/29/22 131,243
01/31/23 377,563
02/28/23 356,801

' 03/22/23 79,556
03/31/23 169,416

04/26/23 210,630

05/30/23 157,261

06/06/23 38,093

06/13/23 144,294

06/15/23 18,519

06/19/23 18,836

06/27/23 106,497

$ 2,851,255
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, Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.

"ANALYSIS OF CLIENT SERVICE FEES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Accounts Contractual Bad Debts ) Accounts

Receivable, Gross Allowances and Other Cash Receivable,

Beginning Fees & Discounts Charges Rece‘:ipts : Ending
Client fees § 422447 § 1981887 §  (9265586) $ - §  (672539) $ 805209
Blue Cross/Blue Shield 143,912 I1 584,311 (455,267) - {1,082,108) 190,848
Medicaid 511,081 I 48,711,258  (26918,849) - {21,231,315) 1,072,155
Medicare 154,045 971938 (208,947) - (743.163) 173,853
Other insurance 265,991 1,732,948 (698,864) - (1,038,156) 261819
.Housing fees | (7.870) 953,316 (15,745) - (939,388) : (9.687)

Allowance for
Doubtful accounts (882,275) -

107,276 - (774 999)

TOTALS $ - 607,311 $ 55935658 $ (29,224258) $ 107,276 §$ (25,706,689) $ 1,719,298
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Report1
Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 ©
& )
Federa!
Pass-Through Assistance
v Additionat Entity Listing
Federal Granlorf?mgram Title Award {D Number Number Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Passed through the State of New Hampshife.
Oepartment of Health and Human Services:
NH State Opioid Response §8-2019-BDAS-05-ACCES-03-A03 93.788 $ 699,548
Projects for Assistance in Translition from Homeles;mess S$5-2018-DBH-01-MENTA-04 93.150 38,234
Emergency Grants to Address Menial and Substance Use . )
Disorders During COVID-19 ' ! COVID-19 $5-2020-DBH-07-RAPID-04 93.665 121,279
System of Care 2.0 ’ © 55-2018-DBH-01-MENTA-04 83.104 & 205549
VR Work Incentives ; ' . 84.126 80,000
Provider Relief Fund COVID-19 93.498 548 512
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 1693122 -
NOTE A BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule} includes the federal award activity of Riverbend
Community Mental Health, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2023. The information In this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Tite 2 UW.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc. it is not intended 1o and does not
present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
NOTE B SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reporied on the Schedule are reportad on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expendHuras are recognized following
the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. .
A
Riverbend Community' Mental Health, Inc., has not elected to use the 10 percent de miminis indirect cost rate as allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.
NOTEC PROVIDER RELIEF FUNDS

In total, through the year ended June 30, 2023, Riverbend Community Mental Heallh, Inc. received $1,263,352 in provider relief funds,
Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc. followed the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services reporting requirements based
on the period of availablility for each payment received. Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc. received $550,000 in provider relief
funds in Period 1 which was subject to the Uniform Guidance at June 30, 2021. Riverbend Community Mental Health; Inc, received
$164,840 In provider relief funds in Perod 3 which was recognized as revenue and subject to the Uniform Guidance as of June 30,
2022 as shown on the schedule above; Additionally Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc, received $548,512 in provider relief
funds in Period 4 which was recognized as revenue for the year ended June 30, 2022, but not subject to the Uniform Guidance until
June 30, 2023, .
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Kittell Branagan & Sargent
. Certified Public Accountants ’

Vermont License #167

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND. ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASEDON
_ AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Riverbend Community Mental Health nc.
Concord, New Hampshire .

We have auditéd, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the-United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Riverbend Community
Mental Health, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June
30, 2023, and the related statements of operations and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the finaricial statements, and have |ssued our report thereon dated October 23 2023, '

Report on Internal Control over Fmanclai Reporting

in planning and p_erforming our audit -of the financial statements, we considered Riverbend Community
Mental Health, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures thal are appropriate in the cwcumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of .Riverbend
Community Mental Health, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Riverbend Community Mental Health, In¢.’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal controf exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned funictions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis, A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal contiol, such that there is a feasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency 'is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is: less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to mierit attention by those. charged with governance.

" Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies In internal control that might be . material
weaknesses or s;gnlﬂcant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies 'in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
miay exist that havé not been identified.

154 North Main Stroz), St. Aibans, Vermon({ 05478- | P B802.524.9531 | 800.499.9531 | FB802524.9533

. ‘Ww.kbsc‘paicom
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Riverbend Community Mental Heaith, inc.

Report on Compliance and Oiher Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Riverbend Community Mental Health, inc.'s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its .compliance with certain’
‘provisions of laws, reguiations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
. direct. and matenal effect on the determination of financial statement amounts, However, providing :an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or.other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testlng of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testmg, and not to provide an opiniori on the effectiveness of the organization's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
‘Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and cornpllance
Accordlngly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose

m&3wwgm+5_

St. Albans, Vermont
October 23, 2023
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Kittell Branagan & Sargent
Certified Public Actoititiants

Vermont License # 167

.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED -
BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
. Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
Con¢ord, New Hampshire

Report on Cor’npli,ance for Each Major Federal Program’
Opinion on Eacﬁ Major Federal Program - '

We have audited Riverbend Community Mental Healith, Inc’s compliance with the types of compliance
réquirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
- material effect on each of Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2023. Rivéerbend Community Mental Health, Inc:'s major federal programs are identified in
the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

I'n our opinion, Riverbend Community Mental Health, inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 6n each of its major
federal programs’ for the year ended June 30, 2023. o

Basis for 6pihion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2-
. U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and
the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report. ‘

We are required to be independent of Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc. and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence wé have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for each major federal program. Qur audit does not provide a legal determination of Riverbend
Community Menial Health, inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

164 North fsin Streat 5t Albans, Vermont 85478 1 P 802.524.9531 | B00.499.9531 | F 802.524.9533

www.kbscpa.com .
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.

Responsibilities of Management for 'Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,

implementation, and maintenance of effective ‘internal controf over compliance with the requirements of

laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Riverbend -
Cornmunlty Mental Health, Inc.'s federal programs

Audrtor s Responsnbllltles for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectwes are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion
on Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is hot absoilite assurance and therefore is not a guararitee that an audit’
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and
the Uniform Guidance will always 'detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting

‘material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may invoive

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about Riverbend Communlty Mental Hea!th Inc.’s compliance
with the requirements of each major federal prograrn as a whole. \
In performing :an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

« . Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skeptrcusm throughout the -audit.

* |dentify and assess the risks of matenal noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.” Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc’s compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and perforiiing such other procedures as we considered
necessary'in the circumstances.

. Obtain an understanding of Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc’s intérnal conitrol ovef
compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.’s internal control ovér compliance. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the.
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over ¢ompliance-that we identified during the' audit.
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.

i1

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or.employees, in the norma! course of performing their assigned -
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timély basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or -a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over-compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. :

* Our-consideration of internal control ovér compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's -
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to 'identify ali deficienciés
in intérnal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not |dent|fy any deﬂcnenmes in
inteérnal control over compliance that we consider'to be material weaknesses, as defined above. Howaver,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compllance may exist that were not
identified.

Our audit was not designed for the pﬁrpose of expressing &ri opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the. requirements of the Uniform
‘Guidance. Accordingly, this-repoit is not suitable for any other purpose.

St.-Albans, Vermont
October 23, 2023
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. Report 4
Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.

‘SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
June 30, 2023

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc. were prepared in accordance with GAAP.

The auditor's report expresses an- unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements of -

A

There were no significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the financial statements. No
material weaknesses are reported.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Riverbend Community
Mental Health, Inc., which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

There were no significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs
disclosed during the audit. No material weaknesses are reported.

The auditor's report on cdmpl_iance for the major federal award programs for Riverbend
Community Mental Health, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

There were no audit findings required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR Section
200.516(a).

The programs tested as a major program were:
93.788 - The Doorways - Hub & Spoke Concord
The thl;eshold used for distinguishing between Types A and B programs was $750,000.

Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

There were no findings related to the financial statements audit.

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS — MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

There were no findings or questioned costs related to the major federal award programs.
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Riverbend Community Mental Health, Inc.
Board of Directors
12023-2024
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Frank Boucher, Vice Chair

Andrea.Beaudoin, Assistant Secretary

Lisa Madden, President/CEO, Ex Officio

Crystal Welch, Treasurer

Mark Broth

John Chisholm

Leslie Combs

Christopher Eddy

Te-Ana Harris

Timothy Herbert

Benjamin Hodges

Nicholas Larochelle

Robin Nafshi

Bradley Osgood

James Snodgrass

Carol Sobelson

Johane Telgener

Kara Wyman

Robert Steigmeyer, £x Officio - g
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LISA K. MADDEN, MSW, LICSW

Riverbend Community Mental Health Center, Inc., Concord, NH, 5/2020 — present
President and Chief Executive Officer

Concord Hospital, Concord, NH, 5/2020 — present :
Vice President of Behavioral Health

Chief executive for a full service community mental health center serving the greater
Concord community. This position is responsible for the oversight of all clinical,
financial, human resource, community advocacy and fundraising operations.
Riverbend is a member of the Capital Region Health Care system and the President
& CEO sits on the Board of Directors. This Vice President of Behavioral Health at
Concord Hospital is a member of the senior leadership team. This position works
collaboratively with medical and administrative leadership to advance services for
those dealing with mental illness and addiction issues. This position is responsible
for the oversight of all professional psychiatric services in the facility. The VP
works closely with the nursing leadership to manage the inpatient psychiatric
treatment services as well. -

Southern New Hampshire Health, Nashua, NH, 7/15 — 5/2020

Associate Vice President of Behavioral Health

Executive Director of Region 3 Integrated Delivery Network

Responsible for the oversight of all behavioral health services within Southern New

Hampshire Health system, this includes services at Southern New Hampshire Medical

Center (SNHMC) and Foundation Medical Partners (FMP). In addition, serve as the

Executive-Director of the 1115 DSRIP Integrated Delivery Network (ION) for the

Greater Nashua region. Duties for both positionsinclude:

»  Member of the Executive Leadership Team for both SNHMC and FMP.
« Oversee the program development, implementation and clinical servicesin the -
following departments:
o [Emergency Department

Partial Hospital Program (PHP)

Intensive Qutpatient Program for Substance Use Disorders (IOP)

I8 bed inpatient behavioral health unit (BHU)

Foundation Counseling and Wellness -outpatient clinical services

Foundation Collaborative Care- outpatient psychiatric evaluation and

medication management

o Center for Recovery Management - medication for addiction treatment
. {MAT)
o Integrated Behavioral Health in Primary Care Practices

» Responsible for the fiscal management of the above. -

+  Work closely with medical providers, practice managers and staft'to address the
needs of people living with mental illness and addictions. Addressing issues
related to stigma and supporting their efforts to treat everyone with dlgmty and
respect.

+  Represent SNHH in community forums mcludmg

o New Hampshire Hospital Association Behavioral Health Peer Group

c o 0 C Q0
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o New Hampshire Hospital Association Behavioral Health Leammg
Collaborative

o Mayor's Suicide Prevention Task Force
Seek funding for programs from various foundations and organizations.
Participate in quality reviews and discussions with private insurance companies
and state managed care organizations. Discussions include incentive options and
program development opportunities for their members.
Work closely with DHHS leadership to advance clinical treatment optionsin the
community.

‘Responsible for the implementation ofthe.1 115 DSRIP waiverin Greater Nashua

0 SNHMC is the fiscal agent for the demonstration.

o Work closely with 30 communlty partners to achieve the goals ofthe
waiver.

o Memberofthe Workforce Development Policy Subcommiliee, focus or
legistative opportunities that will assist with addressing the workforce
shortage in NH.

o Participate in extensive governance process that assures transparency in
the distribution of funds to community partners. )

o Assure the special terms and conditions established by the state are
implemented. -

Center for Life Management, Derry, NH

Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, 6/05 - 6/15

Responsible for the oversight of efficient operations of outpatient clinical systems ofcare in
accordance with all federal and state requirements.

. Oversee all clinical services for the Community Mental Health Center for Region

10 in New Hampshire. Services include various therapeutic interventions, targeted
case management, supparled' housing, wellness services, inlegrated care and
community support services.

Increased revenue by over 100% and increased staff by 41%. Responsible for

- the management of approximately 200 employees underoperations.

Established and maintain clinical service goals and incentive pay for performance
system within a financially self-sustaining model of care. ¢

Provide leadership for extensive program development. Responsible for the
implementation and expansion of new or existing programs in response to
community needs. :

Responsible for monitoring clinical and administrative costs and revenue
generation as well as the submission of the annual program budgets to the
President and CEOQ.

Collaborate with.the Vice President of Quality and Compliance to determine the
training needs for clinical and administrativestaff.

Assist the President and CEO in developing short and long range strategic plan
including program expansions, business development, facilities and capital
usage and/or improvements.

Responsible for the establishment and maintenance of an integrated care model
which allows for seamless access to services within the agency, coordination of '
services with area healthcare providers, as well as provision of behavioral
healthcare consultation services at the physicians offices.

Assisted in the process of consolidating three sites into one new facility in July
2007. Primary responsibility for the expansion of services in Salem in September
2014.

Worked closely with the COO of a local hospital to develop and expand a long
term contract to provide emergency evaluation services at the hospital and to assist
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with disposition to appropriate level of'care.

*  Worked extensively with Senior Management to prepare for Medicaid Care
Management in New Hampshire. Part of the team that established the first in the
.state per member per month contract wnh the MCO's inclusive of incentive
metrics.

Lisa K Madden, LICSW, LLC
Consultant, 6/04 - 6105
Independent contractor providing consultation services to a community counseling center and a
specialized foster care organization.
Interim Clinic Director, 8104 - 5105
Wayside Youth and Fa amily Support, Framingham, MA
Responsible for the turnaround management of a large community counseling center in
Framingham. Accomplishments include:
+ Reorganized clinical team, supervisory structure and support staff functions
»  Implemented necessary performance imprm;emenl plans
»  Hired staff with significantly increased productivity expectations
+  Assisted in the implementation of a new Performance Management and Billing System
'« Worked diligently to foster a positive work environment through extensive verbal and
written communication; staff involvement in decisions when appropriate; providing
direct feedback when necessary; and by providing support. The goal was to foster a
positive and cooperative "culture" in theclinic.
«  Assisted senior management with budgel development
Clinical Supervisor, 7104 - 6105
The Mentor Network, Lawrence MA _
« Provide clinical supervision 1o MSW's seeking independent licensure.
. Ffrovidé training and consultation to the staff on such topics as diagnostic evaluations,
treatment plans and case presentations.
»  Provide group support andtrauma debriefing after a critical incident.

The Massachusetts Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Children (MSPC C)

The Family Counseling Center

Northeast Regional Clinic Director, Lawrence, .MA 12/99 - 9/03

Responsible for turnaround management of the clinics in the Northeast Region of MSPCC,
specifically the cities of Lawrence, Lynn and Lowell. The clinics had been struggling with staff
recruitment and retention, reduced revenue, poor management of contracts, as well as significant
problems in the medical records department. Responsibilities included budget development,
implementation and accountability. Accomplishments include:

«  Grew clinical team from 15 10 32 clinicians in three years.

» Developed Multi-Cultural Treatment Team.

+ lIncreased annual third party revenue by 70%; increased annual contract revenue by 65%.

»  Contracts with the Department of Social Services; the Department of Mental Health in
conjunction with the Professional Parent Advocacy League; the Department of Education
and the Community Partnerships for Children and HeadStart.

+  QOrganizeda successful site visit for re-ticensure from the Department of Public Health
(DPH) as well as the Council on Accreditation (COA).

+ Reorganized Medical Records to meet DPH and COA standards; reorganize claims
support resulting in increased revenue received for services rendered and significantly
reduced write-offs,

»  Participated on the HIPAA Task force-assisted in the development and implementation
of the federally mandated Health Information Portability and Accountability Act policies
and procedures for MSPCC.,
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Clinic Director, Hyannis, MA 9/95-12/99 -
Responsible for the turnaround management of a regional cllmc serving children and families on
Cape Cod. The clinic had experienced over 70% turnover, significant reduction in revenue, and a
series of very negative stories in the local media because of the agency's response to the
implementation of managed care. Responsible for marketing and public relations; redevelopment
of a high quality clinical treatment team; as well as, increasing revenue and program
development. Accomplishments include:
*  Grew clinical team from |2 to 37 in three years.
*  Streamlined intake procedures to increase access to services and reduce wait times.
* Increased annual third party revenue by 80%.
+  Developed consulative relationships with two of Cape Cod's most well respected
children's services providers.
» Developed first private/public partnership betweeri MSPCC and a private practice to
increase the availability of specialty clinical services. -
+ Developed internship program for Master's level clinician candidates.

North Essex Community M enml Health C enrer, (NECMHTC, Inc.),
Newburyport/Haverhill, MA
Employee Assistance Professional, Clinical Social Warker, 9/93-7/95

NECMHC, Inc., Newburyport/Haverhill, MA
Clinical Social Worker - Intern, 5193-9/93

Waorcester Children's Friend Society, Worcesrér, MA : :
Clinical Social Worker - Intern, 9/92-4/93

The Jernberg Corporation, Worcester, MA
EAP CaseManagement Supervisor, 4190-4/93
EAP Case Manager, 2/89-4/90

The Carol Schmidt Diagnostic Center and Emergency Shelter, YOU, Inc., Woreester,
MA, 10/85-2/89
Clinical Counselor I & 11

EDUCATION

University of Connecticut, School of Social Work, West Hartford, CT
Masters in Social Work, Casework/Administration, August 1993

Clark University, Worcester, MA

Bachelor of Arts, Government/Human Services, May 1985
EROFESSIONAL LICENSE

Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker, MA # 1026094
JEACHING and PUBLICATION

Mental Health Management, New England College, Graduate School
Summer2007

Madden, Lisa K., 2009. Targeted Case Management lmpiementanon at the Center for Life
Management, Comphancc Watch, volume 2, issue 3, p. 8-10.

References available upon request
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Chris Mumford

Experience

. 2017-present Riverbend Community Mental Health Center ©  ~  Concord, NH

Chief Operating Officer

Responsible for all administrative aspects within service programs mcludlng budget
development and management, program planning, working with the Community Affairs
Office to develop revenue streams, reporting to funders, and resource deployment,

Works with program management to insure adequate staff resources by promoting a work
environment in which staff are supported, offered rich career development opportunities,
and held accountable for performance

Develop, monitor, and oversee Riverbend fadlities, i in conjunction with the Chief Financial
Officer, to provide adequate, safe space for clients and staff.

Work with Chief Financial Officer to develop and oversee a strategic plan for Riverbend ~
facilities.

Develop, monitor, and oversee Riverbend technology to prowde efficient service delivery,
documentation, and revenue generation.

Maintain agency credibility in the community through strong working relationships with
other area agencies, working with development and public relations staff to feature positive
agency profile, and preparing reports to momtor efficiency and effectiveness of services for
internal and external stakehotders.

Oversee creation of policies and procedures for existing/future services.

Establish and maintain relationships with insurers and managed care companies as needed.
Attend agency, community and State meetings to represent Riverbend.

Update and maintain professional knowledge and skills by attending relevant workshops
and trainings, actively reviewing professional literature and seeking ongoing superwsmn and
peer discussion.

Work with the Bureau of Behavioral Health to implement Bureau directives and
programming te meet Bureau expectations.

Communicate agency values to staff and provide positive leadershlp to help staff view
change as an opportunity.

Engage in strategic and tactical planning to identify and maximize opportunities to meet
community need.

Maintain positive working relationships with colleagues, direct reports, and others within
Riverbend and in the community. -

Act, along with CFQ, as CEO in his/her absence.

Work effectively with other members of senior management and share in coverage of
management and clinical responsibilities.

2013-present , Riverbend Community Mental Health Center Concord, NH

CSP Program Director

Provides teadership for program of ~1200 adults with severe and persistent mental illness.

Direct Supervision for 12 Managers overseeing a program of 80+ staff.

Assures quality of clinical services of the program.

Clinical Program development including integrated primary care, therapeutic evidenced-based
practices, issues of engagement, and Trauma-informed service delivery.

Manages program operations to optimize efficient service delivery including policy development.
Manages resources to obtain positive financial outcomes including budget development.
Actively engages in collaboration, teamwork, and relationship building to optimize the qualily of
services, program and agency effectiveness, and employee job satisfaction.
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Collaboration with other program directors to assure positive and effective program interface.

.
= ° Works with senior management to assure program needs are met with regard to personnel, IT, space,
and financial resources.
s Establishes and maintains strong working relationships with 5 West, NHH, NF], NH State Prison,
MCHOC, and BBH.
= Assures compliance with documentation and other quality assurance requirements.
*  Oversees requirements of State law, rules and regulations including the implementation of the
Community Mental Health Agreement as it relates to the program.
»  Consultation and education across the agency regarding the Adult Needs & Strengths Assessment,
Supported Employment, ACT, DBT, and IMR.
- % Member of Agency Commitiees: Clmlcal Records, Evidence-based practices, Investment and Quality
! Council. :
s Key participant in the program move to the West Street locatlon including needs assessment, demgn
and coordination of the move,
*  Ongoing development and training around working with Borderlme Personality Disorder.
= Agency trainer for Adult Eligibility Determinations.
2009-2013 Riverbend Community Mental Health Center Concord, NH

Clinical Team Leader

Provided clinical and administrative supervision to 7 Adult Clinicians.

Provided licensure supervision to clinicians from other programs.

Developed and provided staff training on the topics of Borderline Personality Disorder (BPD) and
Dialectical Behavioral Therapy (DBT).

Managed referrals for individual and group psychotherapy at CSP.

Managed the intake schedule for CSP.

Reviewed all forensic referrals to the CSP program and authorizing admission to CSP intake.
Served as interim NHH liaison and back-up to the NHH liaiSon.

Assured program adherence to HeM 401 regarding intakes and eligibility.

Provided individual psychotherapy to a caseload of up to 20. .
Exceeded benchmark by over 275 hours since 2009 averaging more than 15 hours over per
quarter.

Served on the Clinical Records Committee.
Coordinated internship opportunities at CSP.
Tramed as a trainer for the Adult Needs and Strengths Assessment {ANSA)tool in 2011,

§003-2009 : Riverbend Community Mental Health Center Concord, NH
Adult Clinician I, I1, & III

Provided individual and group psychotherapy for adults suﬁ'enng with Severe and Pers:stent
Mental [llness.

Completed weekly assessments for State-supported services (eligibility determmatmns)
Provided linkage to outside resources for those CSP applicants determined not eligible for CSP.
Worked closely with interdisciplinary team.

Co-led DBT Skills group for over 5 years.

Proficiency with Diatectical Behavioral Therapy.

Developed and provided staff training sessions for DBT. |

Developed and facilitated a Men’s Anger Management Group.

Developed and facilitated a Social Skills Group for adults with psychotic disorders.

Provided short-term and solutions-focused individual psychotherapy with the privately insured
client population (those not eligible for CSP) at Riverbend Counseling Associates part-time for

about 18 months.

2002-2003 Riverbend Community Mental Health Center Concord, NH
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Residential Psychiatric Rehabilitation Specialist

»  Provided Mental lilness Management Services (MIMS) to adults with severe mental illness living

in supported housing,
= Medication support services

2002-2003 New Hampshire Hospital

Psychiatric Social Worker /nternship

® Initial assessments on an admission unit.
= Discharge coordination with numerous community agencies.

Concord, NH

2001-2002 Carroll County Mental Health
' : Center )
Adult Clinician /nternship

* Individual psychotherapy with adults living with severe mental illness.

=  Emergency Services assessment, intervention, and linkage.

* Facilitated voluntary and involuntary psychiatric hospitalizations.

Pﬁnicipa!ion in DBT Skills group

Wolfeboro, NH

Education
2001-2003 _ "~ University of New Hampshire . * Durham, NH
Master of Social Work
= Magna Cum Laude
1994-1998 ' University of New Hampshire Durham, NH

Bachelor of Arts in Psychology
®*  Cum Laude

Licensure

Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker

= March 17, 2007
» License #1367
®  Provision of licensure supervision since 2007.

References /

A

‘References are available on request.

!
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CRYSTAL A.WELCH

CAREER PROFILE

Experienced Chief Financial Officer/ Director of Finance & HR Administration, serving non-profit missions for over twenty
years. Possesses solid leadership, communication and interpersonal skills to establish rapport with all levels of staff and
management as well as outside resources and community partners. Strong qualifications in developing and implementing
financial controls and processes to improve efficiency, productivity and cost control,

CORE QUALIFICATIONS

Accounting & Financial Management Financial Analysis & Reporting
Board Committee Documentation & Planning  Risk Management ' .
Human Resources & Payroll Capital Campaigns
Grant Management Investments
Audit ' Business Planning & Analysis -
Projection Modellng -+ Building Construction & Renovaticns
Budgeting Financing and Insurance i
\

KEY INVOLVEMENTS

o} O C 0000 o}

o0 Q0

o]

Prepare, by way of impont and export functionality to/from systems, distribute and present; all financial, cash
management and investment reports on a monthly and annual basis

Prepare and distribute departmental financials

Prepare and administer the annual operational, capital, grant and project budget(s) ensuring compliance with all
federal, state, local and contractual guidelines are adhered to if appropriate

Develop ancillary rates and negotiate rates/grants with state and local agencies

Maintain and recommend to the CEQ, Board and Board Committees on policy and procedures,
quality/compliance and risk management issues

Develop contracts with banks, vendors, and external providers of contracted services

Serve as a member of the Executive Management Team and Management Team

Develop and maintain a Capital Improvement Plan-in conjunction with Facilities Manager

Banking administration to include relationship maintenance and cash management

Keep accurate books of account while malnlalnlng internal controls and proper accounting cycle

Ensure that all invoices and purchase orders have adequate controls installed and that substantiating
documentation is approved and available such that all purchases may pass independent and governmental audits
prior to disbursement

Ensure the monthly reconciliation of Balance Sheet accounts as well as reconciliation to other departmental

_systems occur and reconcile

Direct annual audit

Provide leadership, supervision and oversight to flnance and human resources staff

Serve as liaison to the Finance, Retirement, Compliance, Investment and Endowment oversight committees
Prepare, distribute and present all appropriate information to Board Commlttees on an ongoing basis including
preparation of resolutions that may be necessary

Attend Board of Trustees and Directors meetings and provide written and verhal financial reports to include
monthly income and expense, cash flow, balance sheets, capital, endowment, fiscal and multi-year projections
angd any other reports needed to assess the financial position of the organization.
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SPECiAL ACCOMPLISH MENTS

o Implementation of various software — most notable the implementation of F9, an Excel reporting product that
- allows direct linking to the general ledger. It immediately pulls data, in real time, to financial and data reports.
Setup this system and financial reporting package as well as built the linkage back to the general ledger system
o Successfully create RFP for a new Investment firm, HRIS/payroll system as well as a new Business Insurance
broker assuring follow-through on objectives and implementation, ensuring an outcome of cost effective quality -
support
¢ Successfully implement analysis and reconcmation processes related to retirement and payroll to ensure timely
and accurate reporting as well as adherence to ERISA guidelines
o Creation of current fiscal year projections as well as multi-year projections and scenarios. )
o Create and implement a Cash Flow Forecasting model, to assist in strategic and financial decision making of the
CEQ, Finance Committee and the Boards
o Successful owner and manager of several rental propemes over the course of 10+ years — this includes;
o multiple finance projects
o orchestrate many large scale renovation projects
o _management of tenants
o insurance negotiation — including claims management
o “Flipped” several homes utilizing private financing arrangements
o Implement improvements in processes, procedures and workflows that result in improved internal controls and
efficiencies as well as a reduction in staffing needs
o Implement allocation method to further define and analyze business segments
o Multiple years of clean audits

WORK EXPERIENCE

Chief Financial Officer ' 10/2021-Current
Riverbend Community Mental Health £

Chief Financial Officer © 2017-10/2021
New Hampshire Public Radio - Concord, NH

Director of Finance - - 2016 - 2017 !
Manchester Community Health Center - Manchester, NH

Director of Finance/CFO | 2009 2016
Spaulding Youth Center - Northfield, NH

Accounting Manager/ Controller 2000 - 2008
Tree Cate Industry Association - Manchester, NH

. EDUCATION
B.S. Accounting/Finance (2005) Southern New Hampshire University . - Manchester, NH
MBA Business Administration Southern New Hampshire University Manchester, NH

*Temporarily on -hold
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Paul J. Brown, MD

Professional Experience

Riverbend Community Mentél Health Center . May 31, 2022 - Présent
Chief Medical Officer '

Riverbend Community Mental Health Center, 10 West Street, Concord, NH 03301

MHM Correctional Services, Inc, Concord, NH November, 2008 — May, 2022
Staff Pysychiatrist

NH Suicide Fatality Review Committee ' March, 2017 - Present
- Chairman, March 2017--Present

Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth- July, 2014 - June, 2017
Clinical Assistant Professor

Nominated for Psychlatry Clerkship - Award for Outstandmg Contribution to Geisel Student Learning,
May 2015

Roger Williams Medical Center, Providence, Rl January, 2006 — November, 2008
Medical Director

Medical Director for the Dual Dlagn05|s Unit, Addiction Unit and Partial Hospitalization Program at the
Roger Williams Medical Center, Providence, Ri

Riverbend Community Mental Health Center July, 2004 — December, 2005 .
Staff Pyschiatrist -

Riverbend Community Mental Health Center, 40 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301

Concord Psychiatric Associates - July, 2004 — Decémber, 2005
Outpatient Psychiatric Practice

Outpatient Psychiatric Practice, Concord Psychiatric Practices, 248 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301

Capital Region Family Health Center Auqust, 2005 - December, 2005
Clinical Faculty

Clinical Faculty, Capital Region Family Health Center, 250 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301

Elliot Hospital | __July, 2002 — July, 2004
Medical Director, Psychiatric Intensive.Care Unit

Medical Director, Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit, Elliot Hospital, One Elliot Way, Manchester, NH

Elliot Hospital . July, 2002 — July, 2004
Head of Consultation Liaison Psychiatry

Head of Consultation Liaison Psychiatry, Elliot Hospital, One Elliot Way, Manchester, NH
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Elliot Hospital : September, 1992 — July, 2004
Medical Director, Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit

Medical Director, Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit, Elliot Hospital, One.Elliot Way, Manchester, NH '

Elliot Hospital : October , 2002 — ;Julv. 2002
Associate Medical Director, - Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit ‘

Associate Medical Director, Psychiatric Intensive Care' Unit, Elliot Hospital, Outpatient Practice,
One Elliot Way, Manchester, NH %

« Dean's List Award Recipient — Outstanding Employee Performance, 2002 at Elliot Hospital
February . 1994 — October, 2000

Staff Psychiatrist and Assoclate Medical Director

» Optima Health Staff Psychlatnst

» Ellict Hospital — In-Patient, Assomate Medical Dlrector - Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit,
Elliot Hospital, One Elliot Way, Manchester, NH

» Catholic Medical Center — Qut-Patient Practice, 100 McGregor Street, Manchester, NH

Elliot Hospital ' September, 1992 - February, 1994
Interim Medical Director, Gero-Psychiatric Unit

Associate Medical Director, Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit, Elliot Hospital, One Elliot Way, Manchester, NH

Elliot Hospital ' September. 1992 - February, 1994
Chief — Sub-department of Psychlatry

Chief — Sub-department of Psychiatry, Elliot Hospital, One Elliot Way, Manchester, NH

Elliot Hosgita] January, 1998 — July, 2001
Chairman - Department of Psychiatry

Chairman - Department of Psychiatry, Elliot Hospital, One Elliot Wéy, Manchester, NH

Catholic Medical Center January, 1998 — December, 2000
Chairman - Department of Psychiatry - '

Chairman - Department of Psychiatry, Catholic Medical Center, 100 McGregor Stréet, Manchester, NH

. Community Mental Health Services April, 1988 — S_epiemt_@"1 992
Medical Director :

Medical Director, Community Mental Health Servicesw of Belmont, Harrison and Monroe Counties,
. St. Ciairsvilte, Ohio ;
Pembroke Hospital, Pembroke, MA May, 1985 — June, 1987
Staff Psychiatrist ' _

Associate Staff, Pembroke Héspital,.Plembroke, MA
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Licenses and Certification

Board Certified as a Diplomate in the specialty of Psychiatry, October, 1988 z
New Hampshire License #8792, September, 1992 - Present

Ohio License #35-05-5336 (Inactive)

Rhode Island License #12002 (Inactive)

Certified to provide Outpatient Opiate Detoxification and Maintenance using Suboxone and Subutex,
July, 2006 - Present

Education — Post Graduate Training

. Brown University, Providence, Rl _July, 1984 — June, 1987
Psychiatry Residency
Residency Policy Committee Representative, 1984 — 1987 -
In-Patient Clinical Chief Resident, 1986 — 1987
Scored 95™ Percentile, Psychiatry Interim Training Examination
Admissions Committee Represehtétive

Roger Williams General Hospital, Providence, RI July, 1983 — June, 1984
Psychiatry Residency
Roger Williams General Hospital, Providence, RI
Brown University Affiliate
" Internal Medicine internship

Education

University of Connecticut Medical School - July, 1979 — May, 1983
Received MD, Family Medicine Preceptorship, Continuation of Membrane Receptor research

University of Pennsylvania, Philadelphia, PA January, 1976 — May, 1979

BA, Biochemistry with Distinction, Minors in Psychology and English, Magna Cum Laude, Phi Beta Kappa,
~ Alpha Epsilon Delta, Benjamin Franklin Scholar, Honors Program throughout college, 3.8 GPA, Reseach in
" Membrane Receptor Chemistry for 3 years, Presentation of research at UPenn Hematology Conference
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job de_scrlptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Riverbend Community Mental Health, inc.
ANNUAL
AMOUNT PAID ANNUAL
NAME 466 TIREE FROM THIS SALARY
: CONTRACT

Lisa K. Madden . President & CEO $0.00 $240,800.00
Christopher Mumford CoO $0.00 $149,480.00
Crystal Welch CFO $0.00 $156,045.00
Dr. Paul Brown : -~ |CMO $0.00 $318,150.00
$0.00 $0.00
" $0.00 30.00






